
I.
WELCOME

A. Call to Order

B. Time of Reflection

C. Pledge to Flag

D. Adoption of the Agenda – Action

E. Safety Briefing – Aaron Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

F. Sunshine Law/Public Records Statement – Lawsikia Hodges, Office of General Counsel

II. COMMENTS / PRESENTATIONS

Item(s) Speaker/Title

A. Comments from the Public Public

B. Council Liaison’s Comments Council Member Matt Schellenberg

C. JEA Linemen Rodeo Presentation
Caren Anders, VP/GM, Energy;

Angel Vilchez, Mgr Energy Distribution Service Operations

D.
Kiss of Life Hall of Fame Inductee, J.D. Thompson &
Museum Presentation Mike Hightower, Chief Public & Shareholder Affairs Officer

III. OPERATIONS (DISCUSSION / ACTION)

Definition:  The “Operations” section of the Board Meeting is for business matters requiring Board discussion, Board action, 
or for matters being submitted to the Board as information only.

Item(s) Speaker/Title
Discussion

Action/Information
A. Consent Agenda – The Consent Agenda consists of agenda items that require Board approval but are routine in 

nature, or have been discussed in previous public meetings of the Board.  The Consent Agenda items require no 
explanation, discussion or presentation, and are approved by one motion and vote.

Consent Agenda Reference Material (Provided in Appendices)

Appendix A: Board Meeting Minutes March 26, 2019 Action

Appendix B: Board Meeting Minutes April 2, 2019 Action

Appendix C: Water Reuse Week Action

B. Monthly Reports and Updates – The following monthly reports and updates are submitted to the Board as 
information only. These items require no explanation, discussion, presentation or action.

Monthly Reports and Updates (Provided in Appendices)

Appendix A: Monthly Financial Statements Information

Appendix B: Monthly Financial and Operations Detail Information

Appendix C:
Monthly FY19 Communications & Engagement 
Calendar and Plan Update

Information

Appendix D:
Sole Source & Emergency 
Procurement/Procurement Appeals Board Report

Information

C. Monthly Financials and Operations Dashboard Melissa Dykes, Pres./COO Information 

JEA BOARD MEETING AGENDA
April 23, 2019 • 9:00 a.m.

21 W. Church Street, 19th Floor



JEA Board Agenda April 23, 2019 Page 2

IV. STRATEGY (DISCUSSION ONLY)

Definition:  The “Strategy” section of the Board Meeting is only for discussion & feedback to management on strategic 
initiatives of and for JEA.

Item(s) Speaker/Title

A. N/A

V. SUBJECT MATTER EXPLORATION (OPPORTUNITIES & RISKS – PRESENTATION)

Definition:  The “Subject Matter Exploration” section of the Board Meeting will be used to brief the Board Members on 
market, environment, business or other generally important matters.  Staff and/or 3rd party experts will provide 
presentations on a specific subject and the Board will be afforded an opportunity for Q&A at the end.

Item(s) Speaker/Title

A. N/A

VII. OTHER BUSINESS

Item(s) Speaker/Title

A. Old Business

B. Other New Business

C. Open Discussion

D. Managing Director/CEO’s Report Aaron Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

E. Chair’s Report April Green, Board Chair

VIII. CLOSING CONSIDERATIONS

Item(s)

A. Announcements – Noticed Litigation Shade Meeting April 23, 2019; Next Board Meeting May 28, 2019

B. Adjournment

D. JEA FY2018 Annual Disclosure Reports Ryan Wannemacher, CFO Action

E.
JEA’s Procurement and Jacksonville Small and Emerging Business 
(JSEB) Program Report

John McCarthy, VP & 
Chief Supply Chain Officer

Information

VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS

Item(s) Speaker/Title
Discussion
Action/Information

A. Nominating Committee April Green, Board Chair Amendment to Previously 
Adopted Motion Regarding 
Board Officer Positions



JEA Board Agenda April 23, 2019 Page 3

A. If you have a disability that requires reasonable accommodations to participate in the above meeting, please call 
665-7550 by 8:30 AM the day before the meeting and we will provide reasonable assistance for you.

B. If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the JEA Board with respect to any matter considered at this 
meeting, that person will need a record of the proceedings, and, for such purpose, needs to ensure that verbatim record of 
the proceedings is made, which record includes the evidence and testimony upon which the appeal is to be based.

Board Meetings: 9:00 a.m. – Fourth Tuesday of Every Month (exception(s): November 19, 2019 and December 17, 2019

Committees: Finance & Audit Committee: May 20, 2019

Compensation Committee: May 28, 2019

Government Affairs Committee: 

Board Calendar



Florida's Government in the Sunshine Law
Office of General Counsel

This meeting is being held in compliance with Florida's Government in the Sunshine Law, 
§286.011, Florida Statutes, and shall be open to the public at all times.  Official acts of the JEA 
Board may be conducted at this meeting that will be considered binding on the JEA.  Reasonable 
notice has been provided and minutes of this meeting shall be taken and promptly recorded.



JEA Board Minutes March 26, 2019 Page 1

                            JEA BOARD MINUTES
          March 26, 2019

The JEA Board met in regular session on Tuesday, March 26, 2019, on the 19th Floor, 21 
W. Church Street, Jacksonville, Florida. Present were Alan Howard, Frederick Newbill, 
April Green, Camille Johnson and Kelly Flanagan. John Campion was absent and
excused.

Agenda Item I – Welcome

A. The meeting was called to order at 9:11 AM by Chair Howard.
**At the discretion of the Chair, the agenda was called out of order, but the minutes will 
reflect the original order. 

B. A Moment of Reflection was observed by all.

C. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Howard.

D. Adoption of Agenda – The agenda was approved on motion by Ms. Green and second 
by Secretary Newbill. The Chair requested the Board approve an amended agenda to 
reflect that the Finance & Audit Committee lacked a quorum and therefore, under 
section VIII, numbers A.1&2, which call for action will be deferred back to committee 
for their subsequent meeting and items VIII. A. 11. Program Assessment will be 
referred to the full Board at this meeting for action, as it is an audit type item for cyber 
security.  On motion by Secretary Newbill and second by Ms. Green, the amended 
agenda was approved. 

E. The Safety Briefing was given by Aaron Zahn, Managing Director/Chief Executive 
Officer.

F. Sunshine Law/Public Records Statement – Lawsikia Hodges, Office of General 
Counsel (OGC), stated this Board Meeting is being held in compliance with Florida’s 
Government in the Sunshine Law, §286.011. The complete statement can be found in 
section I. F. of the Board package.

Agenda Item II – Public Hearing

A. Call to Order and Comments from the Public – The Chair called the Public Hearing to 
order at 9:00 AM. 

B. Staff Presentations and Board Discussion – Ryan Wannemacher, Chief Financial 
Officer advised the Board that staff was requesting several changes to the electric tariff 
and rate document, some of which would allow for the implementation and continuation 
of two strategic initiatives, the Residential Demand Rate Pilot and SolarMax.  Mr. 
Wannemacher summarized the changes that were previously provided to the Board. 

• Change name of rate from SmartSavings to JEA Flex Pricing
• Offering two rates, Dual Flex, based on the two highest 60-minutes of usage during 

a peak and anytime demand period and Daily Flex, based on the average of the 
daily 60-minutes anytime demand period

• Remove the expiration date, which will allow the rider to remain in place and open 
for large corporate customers’ participation as the new solar centers come online. 

Mr. Wannemacher provided details of the SolarMax program to the Board and advised 
that staff recommends, pending the outcome of the public rate hearing, that the Board 
adopt Resolution 2019-01 and its attachments (Exhibits I, II and III) prepared by staff and 
approved by the Office of General Counsel, to document the action taken.  All changes 
proposed to be effective June 1, 2019. 



JEA Board Minutes March 26, 2019 Page 2

    RESOLUTION 2019-01
A RESOLUTION REGARDING RATE SCHEDULE
CHANGES AND ADDITIONS TO THE EXISTING
ELECTRIC TARIFF DOCUMENTATION; CONDUCTING
A PUBLIC HEARING AND FINDING THE
MODIFICATIONS TO THE ELECTIRC TARIFF
DOCUMENTATION TO BE REASONABLE; IMPOSING
THE MODIFICATIONS TO THE ELECTIRC TARIFF
DOCUMENTATION FOLLOWING THE PUBLIC
HEARING; PROVIDING FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION
OF THE MODIFICATIONS TO THE ELECTIRC TARIFF
DOCUMENTATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

C. Comments from the Public – none

D. Adjourn Public Hearing 

Agenda Items III – Action on Public Hearing 

A. Public Hearing to Modify the Electric Tariff Documentation and Rate Hearing -
On motion by Secretary Newbill and second by Ms. Johnson, Resolution 2019-01
approving the rate changes was approved.  

The Public Rate Hearing was adjourned at 9:11 AM.

Agenda IV – Comments/Presentations

A. Comments from the Public – none

B. Council Liaison’s Comments - none

Agenda Item V – Operations (Discussion / Action)

A. Consent Agenda – used for items that require no explanation, discussion or presentation 
and are approved by one motion and vote. On motion by Ms. Green and second by Ms. 
Johnson, Appendix A, B and D were unanimously approved and Appendix C and E
were received for information.

Appendix A: Special Board Meeting Minutes February 5, 2019 – approved

Appendix B: Board Meeting Minutes February 26, 2019 – approved

Appendix C: Monthly Financial Statements – received for information

Appendix D: Water Conservation Month – approved

Appendix E: Monthly FY19 Communications & Engagement Calendar and Plan 
Update – received for information

B. Monthly Financial and Operations Dashboard – Melissa Dykes, President & Chief 
Operating Officer updated the Board on key metrics from JEA’s four values:

         Customer Value: Estimated Time of Restoration (ETR) is tracking above the FY19 goal 
and is one of the reasons that JEA was recently recognized with Chartwell’s 2019 
Outage Communications Silver Medal for Midsize Utilities.  JEA is providing 
outstanding reliability to customers, which is reflected in the remaining metrics. 



JEA Board Minutes March 26, 2019 Page 3

         Financial Value – Generational fleet reliability is down due to continued issues with 
one of the Northside units, metric will not be met. The unit is currently in a planned 
outage and JEA should be on track moving forward, but the smoking gun was never 
found. O&M goal will be a challenge due to a number of one time issues that have 
occurred and the bargaining unit contracts. 

         Community Impact Value – JSEB spend is on track to meet the stretch goal. We were 
not able to identify enough JSEB contractors to shelter the upcoming septic tank phase-
out, but there is enough JSEB percentage within the project to continue to push up the 
numbers. 

         Environmental – nitrogen to the river is way below goal and this is the lowest rolling 
twelve months of nitrogen to the river in JEA history. 

Ms. Dykes was asked to remind the Board of the timeline for FEMA reimbursement, 
which is related to a number of variables and can take years. Ms. Dykes was also asked 
about recruitment for JSEB program and she advised the Board of outreach and of 
success rate with providing companies opportunities to graduate from the program. 

This item was received for information. 

C. Annual Disclosure Report - Ryan Wannemacher, Chief Financial Officer advised the 
Board that the documents would be provided electronically for the first time.  Mr. 
Wannemacher further advised the Board of the requirements of the annual disclosure 
report and the requirements set for the Board by the Securities & Exchange 
Commission.  Mr. Wannemacher further advised of all of the procedures that are 
required and attested that they have occurred and offered time for Board Members who 
may have questions.  The Chair advised of training available from the bond counsel and 
that they would be asked their availability to attend this 1-1½ hour training.  This item 
was received for information. 

D. Fiscal Year 2019 Operating Budget Line Item Transfers - Ryan Wannemacher, 
Chief Financial Officer advised the Board of line item transfers related to STAR Debt 
Retirement and the City Contribution Agreement, calling for $15 million in additional 
septic tank phase-out funds.  Mr. Wannemacher further advised of the policy related to 
line item transfers in excess of $5 million dollars, which require ratification by the 
Board after the fact.  On motion by Secretary Newbill and second by Ms. Green, the 
Board ratified the line item transfers. 

Agenda Item VI – Strategy (Discussion Only)

A. JEA Real Estate Optimization Initiative – Steve McInall, VP & Chief Energy & 
Water Planning, advised the Board of efforts to monetize JEA-owned properties with no 
associated current or anticipated need.  These properties include the Downtown 
Headquarters, Talleyrand (part of Kennedy Generating Station), corner of Atlantic and 
Southside (the former Coggin automobile dealership) and property at Cecil Commerce 
Center.  Mr. McInall advised that further property would become available once 
demolition has been completed at the SJRPP site and the land has been parceled and 
made available for sale.  Mr. McInall provided the Board with potential sale amounts 
versus book value and advised of the Surplus Property Sales Process.  A quick look at 
the properties was provided and the Board advised of how property is acquired and how 
land is parceled out and made available for sale.  Once SJRPP and other properties 
beyond these four are made available, this initiative will generate more than $100 
million in revenue and reduce the annual O&M cost for carrying properties on the 



JEA Board Minutes March 26, 2019 Page 4

books.  Mr. McInall responded to questions from the Board.  This item was received for 
information. 

Agenda Item VII – Subject Matter Exploration (Opportunities & Risks – Presentation)

A. Year In Review – Aaron Zahn, Managing Director/CEO, Melissa Dykes, President & 
Chief Operating Officer and Ryan Wannemacher, Chief Financial Officer delivered a 
presentation to the Board which covered the year in review, reflecting on the 
accomplishments of the team.  Ms. Dykes presented a timeline which demonstrated the 
transition of JEA from April 2018 to October 2018 and the setting of our foundation, 
direction and the finalization of the senior leadership team from November 2018 to 
March 2019.  Ms. Dykes also provided a quick summary of the financial metrics and 
results for energy and water since April 2018.  Mr. Wannemacher provided the year in 
results with a review of historical financial metrics and a demonstration of the key 
metrics in energy and water showing “what we said in December 2017” and “what we did 
in FY18”.  Mr. Zahn indicated that it is time for change and to pivot the business.  Mr. 
Zahn provided the new strategic framework, guiding principles and the five focus areas 
for future success, which are as follows: 

Priority One: Develop an adaptive culture
Priority Two: Align to a pervasive commitment to profitability and value 
Priority Three: De-risk the business
Priority Four: Be a platform for customer choice 
Priority Five: 10-year strategic plan in line with our guiding principles 

As part of the presentation for Priority Four, Julio Romero Aguero, Chief Innovation 
Officer advised of the challenges of the industry going forward and introduced Kerri 
Stewart, VP & Chief Customer Officer, who discussed the demand rate study and the 
use of enabling technology and electrification. Deryle Calhoun, VP/GM Water
Wastewater Systems discussed Integrated Water Resource Plan (IWRP), organic    
recycling, renewable natural gas and water purification.  Mr. Aguero introduced the new 
VP & Chief Information Officer, Shawn Eads, who will be a critical resource as JEA 
becomes a digital utility. 
Mr. Zahn discussed the strategic plan and advised that Herschel Vinyard would be 
joining the team as the Chief Administrative Officer, taking over the Compliance, 
Regulatory and Legal teams and Lynne Rhode will be joining JEA as the new Chief 
Legal Officer.  Mr. Zahn also advised of the new organization of the senior leadership 
team and the charges applied to each one.  Further steps, including agreeing on the path 
forward and measuring the baseline were discussed and reviewed and strategic planning 
deliverables were shared with the Board. 
Mr. Zahn thanked the Chair for his time and support and presented him with a gift from 
JEA. This item was presented for information. 

Agenda Item VIII – Committee Reports

A. Finance & Audit Committee – Ms. Flanagan, Committee Chair presented to the Board 
the following items:

1. Adoption of the Agenda – deferred back to the committee for its next meeting
2. Approval of Minutes – December 3, 2018 – deferred back to the committee for its 

next meeting 



JEA Board Minutes March 26, 2019 Page 5

3. FY2020 Budget Assumptions – received for information 
4. JEA Annual Disclosure Policy Report – received for information
5. Quarterly Audit Services Update – received for information 
6. Ethics Officer Quarterly Report – received for information 
7. Electric System and Water and Sewer System Reserve Fund Quarterly Report –

received for information 
8. STAR Plan Early Debt Retirement Phase 1 Update – received for information 
9. Investment Policy Revision – On motion by Committee Chair Flanagan and 

second by Secretary Newbill the Board approved the Investment Policy to be 
revised to reflect the Intergovernmental Investment Pool be changed from up to
15% to up to 20%. 

10. JEA Energy Market Risk Management Policy Report – received for information 
11. Program Assessment – On motion by Committee Chair Flanagan and second by 

Secretary Newbill, the Board approved staff’s recommendation to authorize the 
Board Chair to finalize and approve a direct contract with E&Y to provide a 
written report consisting of a comprehensive, independent and detailed assessment 
of JEA’s cybersecurity program.  

12. Next Meeting, May 20, 2019 8:00-10:00 AM – received for information 
13. Committee Discussion Session

a. Governance Discussion – Aaron Zahn 
b. Ernst & Young – John DiSanto 
c. Director, Audit Services – Steve Tuten 
d. Council Auditor’s Office – Jeff Rodda 

B. Nominating Committee 

1. JEA Board of Directors – Slate of Officers – Chair Howard presented the slate of 
officers as submitted by the Nominating Committee:

Chair – April Green
Vice Chair – Camille Johnson
Secretary – Frederick Newbill

On motion by Secretary Newbill and second by Ms. Flanagan the slate of officers 
was approved and the new officers will begin their terms at the April Board 
meeting. 

Agenda Item IX – Other Business

A. Old Business – N/A

B. Other New Business – N/A

C. Open Discussion – Chair Howard advised the Board of the rating agency trip, applauded 
staff on their presentations and provided his impressions of the meetings’ results.  The 
Chair further advised of the April 2nd Board Meeting regarding the new headquarters. 



JEA Board Minutes March 26, 2019 Page 6

D. Managing Director/CEO’s Report – Aaron Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

Mr. Zahn thanked the senior leadership team once again for their efforts in pivoting 
the business. 

E. Chair’s Report – Chair Howard covered the following items:

1) He thanked the Board for their time and efforts during his tenure. 

2) He thanked Mr. Zahn, Mr. McElroy, Ms. Dykes and past and present SLT for their 
patience and their contributions to his knowledge of the industry and utility. 

3) He acknowledged the three areas of his tenure that required the most time and 
effort: privatization discussion, leadership transition and Plant Vogtle issue and 
made reflections on each. 

4) He commented on the changing industry and his confidence in the CEO and SLT in 
tackling the challenges. 

Agenda Item X – Closing Considerations

A. Announcements – Next Board Meeting – April 23, 2019

B. Adjournment

With no further business claiming the attention of the Board, Chair Howard adjourned the 
meeting at 10:43 AM.

APPROVED BY:

SECRETARY
DATE:  

Board Meeting recorded by:

Cheryl W. Mock, Executive Assistant



JEA Board Minutes April 2, 2019 Page 1

                            JEA BOARD MINUTES
            April 2, 2019

The JEA Board held a special Board meeting on Tuesday, April 2, 2019, on the 19th 

Floor, 21 W. Church Street, Jacksonville, Florida. Present were Alan Howard, 
Frederick Newbill, April Green and Camille Johnson. Kelly Flanagan recused herself 
due to her position with one of the bidding organizations. John Campion was absent and
excused.

Agenda Item I – Welcome

A. The meeting was called to order at 2:00 PM by Chair Howard.

B. A Moment of Reflection was observed by all.

C. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Howard.

D. Adoption of Agenda – The agenda was approved on motion by Secretary Newbill and 
second by Ms. Green.

E. The Safety Briefing was given by Aaron Zahn, Managing Director/Chief Executive 
Officer.

F. Sunshine Law/Public Records Statement – Lawkisia Hodges, Office of General 
Counsel (OGC), stated this Board Meeting is being held in compliance with Florida’s 
Government in the Sunshine Law, §286.011. The complete statement can be found in 
section I. F. of the Board package.

Agenda Item II – Operations (Discussion/Action)

A. Corporate Headquarters – Alan Howard, Board Chair, thanked those involved in the 
four year process that brought JEA to this point.  

B. Overview and Evaluation to Date – Nancy Veasey, Director, Special Projects 
provided an overview of the responses and the short-list milestones.  Ms. Veasey 
further provided a location overview with the current location and the three short-
listed candidates compared as to site, layout, parking and other factors.  Ms. Veasey 
presented a comparison of the three short-listed candidates as relates to local labor, 
Local, Small, Women-owned & Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (LSMWDBE) 
participation and Jacksonville Small & Emerging Business (JSEB) goals.  A criteria 
summary was presented with the categories of Qualitative Summary, Presentation & 
Interview and Quantitative Summary.  The rankings in the categories were as 
follows:

Qualitative Summary: Adams Street, Lot J and Kings Avenue 

Presentation and Interview: Adams Street, Lot J and Kings Avenue 

Quantitative Summary: Lot J, Kings Avenue and Adams Street 

Total Points Pending Board Scoring: Adams Street, Lot J, Kings Avenue 

Michael Harrell, CBRE, discussed the cost summary for the quantitative scores and 
advised that adjustments were made to create a level playing field including 
adjusting for a 190K square footage facility, and a 15-year lease. 

David Edwards, Edwards Cohen, discussed the lease negotiations process and 
reviewed the lease issue summary, identifying significant issues and a number of 
major issues that would need to be addressed prior to execution. 



JEA Board Minutes April 2, 2019 Page 2

Stewart Green, CBRE, discussed critical milestones from negotiations start to 
occupancy and CBRE’s role in the process. 

C. Comments from the Public 

1) Sarah Boren – discussed LEED certification for JEA’s new location

2) Michael Balanky – one of the bidders completed a speaker card but agreed to 
speak at the time appointed for them

D. Questions & Answers 

The Board engaged in a question and answer session, first asking questions of Nancy 
Veasey and CBRE and then with each of the bidding organizations.  Representing 
the organizations were Paul Hardin from Cornish regarding Lot J, Mike Balanky for 
Kings Avenue and Doug Dieck from Ryan Companies for Adams Street. 

E. Board Scoring Instructions and Scoring

Chair Howard provided instructions for Board scoring and opened discussions on the 
process. The Chair advised the Board Member Flanagan was not present due to her 
employment with one of the bidding organizations.  The Board Members reflected 
on the proposals and provided their scores to Juli Crawford, Director, Financial 
Planning & Analysis and Elaine Selders, Senior Purchasing Agent for tabulation and 
compilation with the scoring from staff. 

Nancy Veasey announced the following scores:

Lot J – Board Score: 69.25 – Final Score: 568.25

Kings Avenue – Board Score: 63.25 – Final Score: 534.25

Adams Street – Board Score 78.70 – Final Score: 585.75

Juli Crawford concurred with the findings. 

F. Board Authorization to Proceed with Negotiations with Highest Ranked Firm and 
Other Decisions 

Resolution 2019-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE JEA APPROVING THE FINAL RANKINGS FOR INVITATION 
TO NEGOTIATE NO. 010-19 ISSUED ON OCTOBER 15, 2018: AUTHORIZING AND 
DIRECTING THE CEO AND MANAGING DIRECTOR OF JEA, OR HIS DESIGNEE, TO 
NEGOTIATE A LEASE WITH THE HIGHEST RANKED FIRM BASED ON THE FINAL 
RANKINGS, SUBJECT TO CERTAIN FEES AND CONDITIONS. 

On motion from Secretary Newbill and second by Ms. Johnson, Resolution 2019-03 
was approved, authorizing negotiations to begin with Ryan Companies representing 
the Adams Street location. 



JEA Board Minutes April 2, 2019 Page 3

Agenda Item VIII – Closing Considerations

A. Announcements – Next Board Meeting – April 23, 2019

B. Adjournment

With no further business claiming the attention of the Board, Chair Howard adjourned the 
meeting at 4:52 PM.

APPROVED BY:

SECRETARY
DATE:  

Board Meeting recorded by:

Cheryl W. Mock, Executive Assistant



Ver 2.2 02/01/2014

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM
April 23, 2019

SUBJECT: WATER REUSE WEEK

FROM: Aaron F. Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

TO: JEA Board of Directors

Background
The State designates May 19-25, 2019 as Florida Water Reuse Week. JEA partners with the State and 
St. Johns River Water Management District in promoting water reuse.

Discussion
Water reuse provides a key means of conserving and augmenting our primary water supply, the Floridan 
Aquifer. Water Reuse Week provides an additional opportunity to highlight this important practice.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that Resolution 2019-04 be adopted by the Board to highlight and support May 19-25, 
2019 as Water Reuse Week.

_______________________ __________
Aaron F. Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

AFZ/PKS/



Resolution 2019-04

RESOLUTION OF THE JEA BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO HIGHLIGHT AND 
SUPPORT MAY 19-25, 2019 AS WATER REUSE WEEK

WHEREAS, safe, clean and sustainable water resources are essential to Florida’s 
environment, economy, citizens, and visitors; and

WHEREAS, water reuse provides a means for conserving and augmenting Florida’s 
precious water resources and is key to the State and JEA’s sustainable water future; and

WHEREAS, Florida encourages and promotes water reuse as state objectives in 
Chapters 373 and 403, Florida Statutes, and

WHEREAS, JEA has an expansive reclaimed water system and a program to encourage 
efficient and effective use of reclaimed water. The 360 miles of pipe spanning three
counties delivers approximately 19 million gallons of reclaimed water per day; and

WHEREAS, JEA has joined with the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 
the St. Johns River Water Management District and WaterReuse Florida in proclaiming
the week of May 19-25, 2019 as Florida Water Reuse Week to encourage and promote
water reuse and conservation; and

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that by virtue of the authority vested in me as the 
Chair of the Board of Directors of JEA hereby proclaim May 19-25, 2019, as:

WATER REUSE WEEK

Adopted this 23rd day of April, 2019.

JEA

___________________________
April Green, Chair

Form Approved:

___________________________
Lawsikia Hodges



Monthly Financial 
Statements

March 2019



Page

Statements of Net Position - Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 2

Statements of Net Position - Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position 3

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 4

Statement of Cash Flow 5

Combining Statement of Net Position - Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources Current Year 6

Combining Statement of Net Position - Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position Current Year 7

Combining Statement of Net Position - Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources Prior Year 8

Combining Statement of Net Position - Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position Prior Year 9

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Current Month 10

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Prior Month 11

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Current Year-to-Date 12

Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Prior Year-to-Date 13

Combining Statements of Cash Flow - Current Year 14

Combining Statements of Cash Flow - Prior Year 15

Debt Service Coverage 16

Operating Statistics - Electric System 17

Operating Statistics - Water and Sewer 18

Appendix

Schedules of Cash and Investments 19

Investment Portfolio - All Funds 20

Schedule of Outstanding Indebtedness - Electric 21

Schedule of Outstanding Indebtedness - Water and Sewer 22

Schedule of Outstanding Indebtedness - District Energy System 22

Interest Rate Swap Position Report 23

Production Statistics - Electric System 24

Electric Revenues and Expenses for the Month - Budget versus Actual 26

Electric Revenues and Expenses Year-to-Date - Budget versus Actual 27

Water and Sewer Revenues and Expenses - Budget versus Actual 28

District Energy System - Budget versus Actual 29

Monthly Financial Statements

March 2019

Index



JEA Page 2

Statements of Net Position
(in thousands)

March 2019
(unaudited) September 2018

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 221,893$            441,206$            
Investments 248,733              85,310                
Customer accounts receivable, net of allowance

($1,556 in March 2019 and $1,733 in September 2018) 176,298              232,858              
Miscellaneous accounts receivable 15,869                15,459                
Interest receivable 2,596                  2,831                  
Inventories:

Fuel - Electric System 32,006                31,597                
Fuel - Plant Scherer 3,128                  5,274                  
Materials and supplies - Water and Sewer 54,643                56,350                
Materials and supplies - Electric System 385                     665                     
Materials and supplies - Plant Scherer 2,284                  2,189                  

Total current assets 757,835              873,739              

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 121,931              114,576              
Investments 395,998              731,627              
Accounts and interest receivable 51                       62                       

Total restricted assets 517,980              846,265              

Costs to be recovered from future revenues 791,730              808,096              
Investment in The Energy Authority 7,075                  7,030                  
Other assets 20,387                15,656                

Total noncurrent assets 1,337,172           1,677,047           

Capital assets:
Land and easements 194,605              194,552              
Plant in service 11,483,253         11,231,096         
Less accumulated depreciation (6,680,817)          (6,518,751)          
Plant in service, net 4,997,041           4,906,897           
Construction work in progress 387,254              473,362              

Net capital assets 5,384,295 5,380,259
Total assets 7,479,302           7,931,045           

Deferred outflows of resources
Unrealized pension contributions and losses 171,367              171,367              
Unamortized deferred losses on refundings 138,265              143,722              
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives 112,315              86,356                
Unrealized asset retirement obligation 27,250                29,173                
Unrealized OPEB contributions and losses 4,078                  4,078                  
Total deferred outflows of resources 453,275              434,696              
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 7,932,577$         8,365,741$         



JEA Page 3

Statements of Net Position

March 2019
(unaudited) September 2018

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts and accrued expenses payable 105,275$            126,655$            
Customer deposits 60,544                59,883                
City of Jacksonville payable 9,822                  9,733                  
Utility taxes and fees payable 6,714                  9,550                  
Compensated absences due within one year 2,659                  1,423                  

Total current liabilities 185,014              207,244              

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Debt due within one year 192,555              185,790              
Renewal and replacement reserve 50,686                54,370                
Interest payable 64,918                73,737                
Construction contracts and accounts payable 20,743                53,369                

Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets 328,902              367,266              

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 544,203              544,203              
Asset retirement obligation 7,429                  22,526                
Compensated absences due after one year 27,766                29,431                
Net OPEB liability 18,835                18,835                
Environmental liabilities 16,808                16,818                
Other liabilities 2,535                  2,978                  

Total noncurrent liabilities 617,576              634,791              

Long-term debt:
Debt payable, less current portion 3,428,080           3,813,680           
Unamortized premium, net 128,872              152,891              
Fair value of debt management strategy instruments 112,315              86,356                

Total long-term debt 3,669,267           4,052,927           
Total liabilities 4,800,759           5,262,228           

Deferred inflows of resources
Revenues to be used for future costs 255,986              286,832              
Unrealized pension gains 50,124                50,124                
Unrealized OPEB gains 8,712                  8,712                  
Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivatives 4,353                  2,536                  
Total deferred inflows of resources 319,175              348,204              

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 2,242,545           1,856,725           
Restricted for:

Debt service 97,156                187,374              
Other purposes 168,592              354,663              

Unrestricted 304,350              356,547              
Total net position 2,812,643 2,755,309
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 7,932,577$         8,365,741$         

(in thousands)



JEA Page 4

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
(in thousands - unaudited) 

Month Year-to-Date
March March

2019 2018 2019 2018

Operating revenues

Electric - base 61,678$           60,477$           377,161$         390,198$         

Electric - fuel and purchased power 33,254             25,659             205,008           255,436           

Water and sewer 36,478             36,009             211,750           206,427           

District energy system 561                  574                  3,777               3,905               

Other 2,608               2,464               16,161             69,822             

Total operating revenues 134,579           125,183           813,857           925,788           

Operating expenses

Operations and maintenance:

Fuel 23,507             23,987             166,319           213,544           

Purchased power 13,336             7,181               62,463             50,595             

Maintenance and other operating expenses 32,881             43,254             195,865           233,605           

Depreciation 30,301             28,829             183,140           188,996           

State utility and franchise taxes 5,015               5,110               34,336             34,671             

Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net 1,040               323                  9,846               3,086               

Total operating expenses 106,080           108,684           651,969           724,497           

Operating income 28,499             16,499             161,888           201,291           

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest on debt (12,156)            (12,325)            (71,637)            (81,298)            

Debt management strategy (900)                 (1,124)              (5,593)              (7,147)              

Investment income 6,287               (2,014)              22,524             3,154               

Allowance for funds used during construction 1,231               916                  7,036               4,867               

Other nonoperating income, net 641                  992                  3,854               4,531               

Earnings from The Energy Authority (13)                   (137)                 743                  2,541               

Other interest, net (114)                 (57)                   (944)                 (706)                 

Total nonoperating expenses, net (5,024)              (13,749)            (44,017)            (74,058)            
Income before contributions 23,475             2,750               117,871           127,233           

Contributions (to) from

General Fund, City of Jacksonville, Florida (9,804)              (9,719)              (73,979)            (58,310)            

Developers and other 8,631               5,058               40,029             31,003             

Reduction of plant cost through contributions (6,288)              (2,924)              (26,587)            (19,331)            

Total contributions, net (7,461)              (7,585)              (60,537)            (46,638)            

Change in net position 16,014             (4,835)              57,334             80,595             

Net position, beginning of period 2,796,629        2,714,252        2,755,309        2,628,822        
Net position, end of period 2,812,643$      2,709,417$      2,812,643$      2,709,417$      



JEA Page 5

Statement of Cash Flows
(in thousands - unaudited)

Operating activities 2019 2018
Receipts from customers 823,239$         920,588$         
Payments to suppliers (377,089)          (439,427)          
Payments to employees (121,115)          (145,859)          
Other operating activities 19,464             63,877             
Net cash provided by operating activities 344,499           399,179           

Noncapital and related financing activities
Contribution to General Fund, City of Jacksonville, Florida (73,890)            (58,253)            
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (73,890)            (58,253)            

Capital and related financing activities
Defeasance of debt (195,045)          (993,690)          
Proceeds received from debt 2,000               821,000           
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (212,755)          (171,170)          
Interest paid on debt (91,243)            (104,646)          
Repayment of debt principal (185,790)          (229,095)          
Capital contributions 13,442             11,672             
Other capital financing activities (8,851)              41,811             
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (678,242)          (624,118)          

Investing activities
Purchase of investments (371,356)          (672,493)          
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments 552,831           746,222           
Investment income 13,502             4,907               
Distributions from The Energy Authority 698                  2,785               
Net cash provided by investing activities 195,675           81,421             

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (211,958)          (201,771)          
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 555,782           614,034           
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 343,824$         412,263$         

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income 161,888$         201,291$         
Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization 183,758           189,644           
Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net 9,846               3,086               
Other nonoperating income, net 384                  991                  
Changes in noncash assets and noncash liabilities:

Accounts receivable 57,222             72,910             
Inventories 3,629               5,896               
Other assets (1,851)              2,945               
Accounts and accrued expenses payable (38,717)            (35,476)            
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets (2,453)              76                    
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred inflows (29,207)            (42,184)            

Net cash provided by operating activities 344,499$         399,179$         

Noncash activity
Contribution of capital assets from developers 26,587$           19,331$           
Unrealized gains (losses) on fair value of investments, net 9,268$             (856)$               

 Year-to-Date
March



JEA Page 6
Combining Statement of Net Position 
(in thousands - unaudited) March 2019

 Electric System 
and Bulk Power 
Supply System 

 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination of 
Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 

System Fund Total JEA
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 116,287$           61,108$           -$                  177,395$      40,278             4,220$         221,893$      
Investments 197,500             6,910               -                    204,410        44,323             -                   248,733        
Customer accounts receivable, net of allowance ($1,556) 126,770             -                      -                    126,770        49,191             337              176,298        
Miscellaneous accounts receivable 14,094               462                  (2,545)           12,011         3,858               -                   15,869         
Interest receivable 1,698                 12                    -                    1,710           886                  -                   2,596           
Inventories:

Fuel inventory - Electric System 32,006               -                      -                    32,006         -                       -                   32,006         
Fuel inventory - Plant Scherer 3,128                 -                      -                    3,128           -                       -                   3,128           
Materials and supplies - Water and Sewer -                        -                      -                    -                   54,643             -                   54,643         
Materials and supplies - Electric System -                        385                  -                    385              -                       -                   385              
Materials and supplies - Plant Scherer 2,284                 -                      -                    2,284           -                       -                   2,284           

Total current assets 493,767             68,877             (2,545)           560,099        193,179           4,557           757,835        

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 201                    89,565             -                    89,766         29,781             2,384           121,931        
Investments 226,132             10,882             -                    237,014        158,984           -                   395,998        
Accounts and interest receivable 7                       36                    -                    43                8                      -                   51                

Total restricted assets 226,340             100,483           -                    326,823        188,773           2,384           517,980        

Costs to be recovered from future revenues 296,959             254,177           -                    551,136        240,568           26                791,730        
Investment in The Energy Authority 7,075                 -                      -                    7,075           -                       -                   7,075           
Other assets 16,864               -                      -                    16,864         3,514               9                  20,387         

Total noncurrent assets 547,238             354,660           -                    901,898        432,855           2,419           1,337,172     

Capital assets:
Land and easements 123,626             6,660               -                    130,286        61,268             3,051           194,605        
Plant in service 5,563,730          1,316,043        -                    6,879,773     4,546,093        57,387         11,483,253   
Less accumulated depreciation (3,165,795)         (1,312,764)       -                    (4,478,559)   (2,175,481)       (26,777)        (6,680,817)   
Plant in service, net 2,521,561          9,939               -                    2,531,500     2,431,880        33,661         4,997,041     
Construction work in progress 140,687             -                      -                    140,687        246,241           326              387,254        

Net capital assets 2,662,248          9,939               -                    2,672,187     2,678,121        33,987         5,384,295     
Total assets 3,703,253          433,476           (2,545)           4,134,184     3,304,155        40,963         7,479,302     

Deferred outflows of resources
Unrealized pension contributions and losses 83,649               34,238             -                    117,887        53,480             -                   171,367        
Unamortized deferred losses on refundings 81,206               4,079               -                    85,285         52,792             188              138,265        
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives 89,771               -                      -                    89,771         22,544             -                   112,315        
Unrealized asset retirement obligation -                        27,250             -                    27,250         -                       -                   27,250         
Unrealized OPEB contributions and losses 2,488                 -                      -                    2,488           1,590               -                   4,078           
Total deferred outflows of resources 257,114             65,567             -                    322,681        130,406           188              453,275        
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 3,960,367$        499,043$         (2,545)$         4,456,865$   3,434,561$       41,151$        7,932,577$   



JEA Page 7
Combining Statement of Net Position 
(in thousands - unaudited) March 2019

 Electric System 
and Bulk Power 
Supply System 

 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination of 
Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 

System Fund Total JEA
Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts and accrued expenses payable 70,331$              20,521$            (241)$             90,611$        14,633$          31$               105,275$      
Customer deposits 44,586                -                        -                     44,586          15,958            -                    60,544          
City of Jacksonville payable 7,746                  -                        -                     7,746            2,076              -                    9,822            
Utility taxes and fees payable 6,714                  -                        6,714            -                     -                    6,714            
Compensated absences due within one year 1,622                  -                        -                     1,622            1,014              23                 2,659            

Total current liabilities 130,999              20,521              (241)               151,279        33,681            54                 185,014        

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Debt due within one year 122,380              13,780              -                     136,160        54,705            1,690            192,555        
Renewal and replacement reserve -                          50,686              -                     50,686          -                     -                    50,686          
Interest payable 32,206                5,564                -                     37,770          26,483            665               64,918          
Construction contracts and accounts payable 6,036                  2,973                (2,304)            6,705            14,038            -                    20,743          

Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets 160,622              73,003              (2,304)            231,321        95,226            2,355            328,902        

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 321,885              16,523              -                     338,408        205,795          -                    544,203        
Asset retirement obligation -                          7,429                -                     7,429            -                     -                    7,429            
Compensated absences due after one year 19,731                -                        -                     19,731          8,017              18                 27,766          
Net OPEB liability 11,489                -                        -                     11,489          7,346              -                    18,835          
Environmental liabilities 16,808                -                        -                     16,808          -                     -                    16,808          
Other liabilities 2,314                  -                        -                     2,314            221                 -                    2,535            

Total noncurrent liabilities 372,227              23,952              -                     396,179        221,379          18                 617,576        

Long-term debt:
Debt payable, less current portion 1,796,880           265,105            -                     2,061,985     1,332,960       33,135          3,428,080     
Unamortized premium (discount), net 62,505                1,953                -                     64,458          64,445            (31)                128,872        
Fair value of debt management strategy instruments 89,771                -                        -                     89,771          22,544            -                    112,315        

Total long-term debt 1,949,156           267,058            -                     2,216,214     1,419,949       33,104          3,669,267     
Total liabilities 2,613,004           384,534            (2,545)            2,994,993     1,770,235       35,531          4,800,759     

Deferred inflows of resources
Revenues to be used for future costs 215,833              10,624              -                     226,457        29,529            -                    255,986        
Unrealized pension gains 26,250                7,091                -                     33,341          16,783            -                    50,124          
Unrealized OPEB gains 5,314                  -                        -                     5,314            3,398              -                    8,712            
Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivatives 4,353                  -                        -                     4,353            -                     -                    4,353            

Total deferred inflows of resources 251,750              17,715              -                     269,465        49,710            -                    319,175        

Net position -                     
Net investment in capital assets 792,719              (4,137)               -                     788,582        1,454,582       (619)              2,242,545     
Restricted for:

Debt service 60,653                7,056                -                     67,709          28,602            845               97,156          
Other purposes 68,048                25,698              2,304             96,050          71,669            873               168,592        

Unrestricted 174,193 68,177 (2,304)            240,066        59,763            4,521            304,350        
Total net position 1,095,613           96,794              -                     1,192,407     1,614,616       5,620            2,812,643     
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 3,960,367$         499,043$          (2,545)$          4,456,865$   3,434,561$     41,151$        7,932,577$   



JEA Page 8
Combining Statement of Net Position 
(in thousands) September 2018

 Electric System 
and Bulk Power 
Supply System 

 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination of 
Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 

System Fund Total JEA
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 285,611$           65,840$           -$                  351,451$      86,219$         3,536$         441,206$      
Investments 83,268               2,042               -                    85,310         -                    -                   85,310         
Customer accounts receivable, net of allowance ($1,733) 180,731             -                      -                    180,731        51,267           860              232,858        
Miscellaneous accounts receivable 14,509               778                  (1,912)           13,375         2,084             -                   15,459         
Interest receivable 1,801                 12                    -                    1,813           1,018             -                   2,831           
Inventories:

Fuel inventory - Electric System 30,582               1,015               -                    31,597         -                    -                   31,597         
Fuel inventory - Plant Scherer 5,274                 -                      -                    5,274           -                    -                   5,274           
Materials and supplies - Water and Sewer -                        -                      -                    -                   56,350           -                   56,350         
Materials and supplies - Electric System -                        665                  -                    665              -                    -                   665              
Materials and supplies - Plant Scherer 2,189                 -                      -                    2,189           -                    -                   2,189           

Total current assets 603,965             70,352             (1,912)           672,405        196,938         4,396           873,739        

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 203                    74,113             -                    74,316         36,842           3,418           114,576        
Investments 419,536             23,330             -                    442,866        288,761         -                   731,627        
Accounts and interest receivable 7                       47                    -                    54                8                    -                   62                

Total restricted assets 419,746             97,490             -                    517,236        325,611         3,418           846,265        

Costs to be recovered from future revenues 301,805             261,277           -                    563,082        244,987         27                808,096        
Investment in The Energy Authority 7,030                 -                      -                    7,030           -                    -                   7,030           
Other assets 11,813               -                      -                    11,813         3,843             -                   15,656         

Total noncurrent assets 740,394             358,767           -                    1,099,161     574,441         3,445           1,677,047     

Capital assets:
Land and easements 123,626             6,660               -                    130,286        61,215           3,051           194,552        
Plant in service 5,426,682          1,316,043        -                    6,742,725     4,431,995      56,376         11,231,096   
Less accumulated depreciation (3,072,611)         (1,312,559)       -                    (4,385,170)   (2,108,027)     (25,554)        (6,518,751)   
Plant in service, net 2,477,697          10,144             -                    2,487,841     2,385,183      33,873         4,906,897     
Construction work in progress 174,527             -                      -                    174,527        297,681         1,154           473,362        

Capital assets, net 2,652,224          10,144             -                    2,662,368     2,682,864      35,027         5,380,259     
Total assets 3,996,583          439,263           (1,912)           4,433,934     3,454,243      42,868         7,931,045     

Deferred outflows of resources
Unrealized pension contributions and losses 83,649               34,238             -                    117,887        53,480           -                   171,367        
Unamortized deferred losses on refundings 85,165               4,185               -                    89,350         54,178           194              143,722        
Accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives 70,103               -                      -                    70,103         16,253           -                   86,356         
Unrealized asset retirement obligation -                        29,173             -                    29,173         -                    -                   29,173         
Unrealized OPEB contributions and losses 2,488                 -                      -                    2,488           1,590             -                   4,078           
Total deferred outflows of resources 241,405             67,596             -                    309,001        125,501         194              434,696        
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 4,237,988$        506,859$         (1,912)$         4,742,935$   3,579,744$    43,062$        8,365,741$   



JEA Page 9
Combining Statement of Net Position 
(in thousands) September 2018

 Electric System 
and Bulk Power 
Supply System 

 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination of 
Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 

System Fund Total JEA
Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts and accrued expenses payable 100,614$            7,668$              (796)$             107,486$      19,070$          99$               126,655$      
Customer deposits 44,267                -                        -                     44,267          15,616            -                    59,883          
City of Jacksonville payable 7,622                  -                        -                     7,622            2,111              -                    9,733            
Utility taxes and fees payable 9,550                  -                        -                     9,550            -                     -                    9,550            
Compensated absences due within one year 1,115                  -                        -                     1,115            304                 4                   1,423            

Total current liabilities 163,168              7,668                (796)               170,040        37,101            103               207,244        

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Debt due within one year 130,690              1,720                -                     132,410        51,720            1,660            185,790        
Renewal and replacement reserve -                          54,370              -                     54,370          -                     -                    54,370          
Interest payable 37,613                5,603                -                     43,216          29,841            680               73,737          
Construction contracts and accounts payable 16,596                1,742                (1,116)            17,222          35,886            261               53,369          

Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets 184,899              63,435              (1,116)            247,218        117,447          2,601            367,266        

Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability 321,885              16,523              -                     338,408        205,795          -                    544,203        
Asset retirement obligation -                          22,526              -                     22,526          -                     -                    22,526          
Compensated absences due after one year 20,868                -                        -                     20,868          8,529              34                 29,431          
Net OPEB liability 11,489                -                        -                     11,489          7,346              -                    18,835          
Environmental liabilities 16,818                -                        -                     16,818          -                     -                    16,818          
Other liabilities 2,658                  -                        -                     2,658            320                 -                    2,978            

Total noncurrent liabilities 373,718              39,049              -                     412,767        221,990          34                 634,791        

Long-term debt:
Debt payable, less current portion 2,019,350           278,885            -                     2,298,235     1,480,620       34,825          3,813,680     
Unamortized premium (discount), net 76,748                2,474                -                     79,222          73,703            (34)                152,891        
Fair value of debt management strategy instruments 70,103                -                        -                     70,103          16,253            -                    86,356          

Total long-term debt 2,166,201           281,359            -                     2,447,560     1,570,576       34,791          4,052,927     
Total liabilities 2,887,986           391,511            (1,912)            3,277,585     1,947,114       37,529          5,262,228     

Deferred inflows of resources
Revenues to be used for future costs 249,085              10,624              -                     259,709        27,123            -                    286,832        
Unrealized pension gains 26,250                7,091                -                     33,341          16,783            -                    50,124          
Unrealized OPEB gains 5,314                  -                        -                     5,314            3,398              -                    8,712            
Accumulated increase in fair value of hedging derivatives 2,536                  -                        -                     2,536            -                     -                    2,536            

Total deferred inflows of resources 283,185              17,715              -                     300,900        47,304            -                    348,204        

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 530,479              2,138                -                     532,617        1,325,600       (1,492)           1,856,725     
Restricted for:

Debt service 130,072              1,843                -                     131,915        53,799            1,660            187,374        
Other purposes 186,628              24,321              1,116             212,065        141,520          1,078            354,663        

Unrestricted 219,638              69,331              (1,116)            287,853        64,407            4,287            356,547        

Total net position 1,066,817           97,633              -                     1,164,450     1,585,326       5,533            2,755,309     
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 4,237,988$         506,859$          (1,912)$          4,742,935$   3,579,744$     43,062$        8,365,741$   



JEA Page 10

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

(in thousands - unaudited) for the month ended March 2019

 Electric 
System and 
Bulk Power 

Supply System 
 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination 
of 

Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 
System 

Fund Eliminations Total JEA

Operating revenues

Electric - base 61,943$            -$                -$                 61,943$       -$                 -$              (265)$             61,678$      

Electric - fuel and purchased power 34,094              2,582          (2,423)          34,253         -                   -                (999)               33,254        

Water and sewer -                       -                  -                   -                  36,516         -                (38)                 36,478        

District energy system -                       -                  -                   -                  -                   588           (27)                 561             

Other 1,846                73               -                   1,919           964              2               (277)               2,608          

Total operating revenues 97,883              2,655          (2,423)          98,115         37,480         590           (1,606)            134,579      

Operating expenses

Operations and maintenance:

Fuel 23,081              426             -                   23,507         -                   -                -                     23,507        

Purchased power 15,759              -                  (2,423)          13,336         -                   -                -                     13,336        

Maintenance and other operating expenses 21,017              212             -                   21,229         12,956         302           (1,606)            32,881        

Depreciation 17,642              34               -                   17,676         12,418         207           -                     30,301        

State utility and franchise taxes 4,175                -                  -                   4,175           840              -                -                     5,015          

Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net (133)                 1,171          -                   1,038           2                  -                -                     1,040          

Total operating expenses 81,541              1,843          (2,423)          80,961         26,216         509           (1,606)            106,080      

Operating income 16,342              812             -                   17,154         11,264         81             -                     28,499        

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest on debt (6,674)              (870)            -                   (7,544)         (4,499)          (113)          -                     (12,156)       

Debt management strategy (738)                 -                  -                   (738)            (162)             -                -                     (900)            

Investment income 3,553                182             -                   3,735           2,539           13             -                     6,287          

Allowance for funds used during construction 413                   -                  -                   413              817              1               -                     1,231          

Other nonoperating income, net 363                   29               -                   392              249              -                -                     641             

Earnings from The Energy Authority (13)                   -                  -                   (13)              -                   -                -                     (13)              

Other interest, net (111)                 -                  -                   (111)            (3)                 -                -                     (114)            

Total nonoperating expenses, net (3,207)              (659)            -                   (3,866)         (1,059)          (99)            -                     (5,024)         

Income before contributions 13,135              153             -                   13,288         10,205         (18)            -                     23,475        

Contributions (to) from

General Fund, City of Jacksonville, Florida (7,746)              -                  -                   (7,746)         (2,058)          -                -                     (9,804)         

Developers and other 143                   -                  -                   143              8,488           -                -                     8,631          

Reduction of plant cost through contributions (143)                 -                  -                   (143)            (6,145)          -                -                     (6,288)         

Total contributions, net (7,746)              -                  -                   (7,746)         285              -                -                     (7,461)         

Change in net position 5,389                153             -                   5,542           10,490         (18)            -                     16,014        

Net position, beginning of period 1,090,224         96,641        -                   1,186,865    1,604,126    5,638        -                     2,796,629   
Net position, end of period 1,095,613$       96,794$      -$                 1,192,407$  1,614,616$  5,620$      -$                   2,812,643$ 



JEA Page 11

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

(in thousands - unaudited) for the month ended March 2018

 Electric 
System and 
Bulk Power 

Supply System 
 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination 
of 

Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 
System 

Fund  Eliminations Total JEA

Operating revenues

Electric - base 60,389$            -$                -$                 60,389$       -$                 -$              88$                60,477$      

Electric - fuel and purchased power 29,566              (1,917)         (2,319)          25,330         -                   -                329                25,659        

Water and sewer -                       -                  -                   -                  36,061         -                (52)                 36,009        

District energy system -                       -                  -                   -                  -                   603           (29)                 574             

Other 1,613                200             -                   1,813           869              -                (218)               2,464          

Total operating revenues 91,568              (1,717)         (2,319)          87,532         36,930         603           118                125,183      

Operating expenses

Operations and maintenance:

Fuel 23,656              331             -                   23,987         -                   -                -                     23,987        

Purchased power 9,500                -                  (2,319)          7,181           -                   -                -                     7,181          

Maintenance and other operating expenses 24,755              7,015          -                   31,770         11,034         332           118                43,254        

Depreciation 16,310              17               -                   16,327         12,302         200           -                     28,829        

State utility and franchise taxes 4,229                -                  -                   4,229           881              -                -                     5,110          

Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net (227)                 (63)              -                   (290)            613              -                -                     323             

Total operating expenses 78,223              7,300          (2,319)          83,204         24,830         532           118                108,684      

Operating income 13,345              (9,017)         -                   4,328           12,100         71             -                     16,499        

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest on debt (6,617)              (876)            -                   (7,493)         (4,718)          (114)          -                     (12,325)       

Debt management strategy (903)                 -                  -                   (903)            (221)             -                -                     (1,124)         

Investment income (569)                 (366)            -                   (935)            (1,086)          7               -                     (2,014)         

Allowance for funds used during construction 295                   -                  -                   295              616              5               -                     916             

Other nonoperating income, net 371                   413             -                   784              208              -                -                     992             

Earnings from The Energy Authority (137)                 -                  -                   (137)            -                   -                -                     (137)            

Other interest, net (55)                   -                  -                   (55)              (2)                 -                -                     (57)              

Total nonoperating expenses, net (7,615)              (829)            -                   (8,444)         (5,203)          (102)          -                     (13,749)       

Income before contributions 5,730                (9,846)         -                   (4,116)         6,897           (31)            -                     2,750          

Contributions (to) from

General Fund, City of Jacksonville, Florida (7,623)              -                  -                   (7,623)         (2,096)          -                -                     (9,719)         

Developers and other 23                     -                  -                   23                5,035           -                -                     5,058          

Reduction of plant cost through contributions (23)                   -                  -                   (23)              (2,901)          -                -                     (2,924)         

Total contributions, net (7,623)              -                  -                   (7,623)         38                -                -                     (7,585)         

Change in net position (1,893)              (9,846)         -                   (11,739)       6,935           (31)            -                     (4,835)         

Net position, beginning of period, as restated 1,029,210         149,701      -                   1,178,911    1,530,155    5,186        -                     2,714,252   
Net position, end of period 1,027,317$       139,855$    -$             1,167,172$  1,537,090$  5,155$      -$               2,709,417$ 



JEA Page 12

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

(in thousands - unaudited) for the six months ended March 2019

 Electric 
System and 
Bulk Power 

Supply System 
 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination 
of 

Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 
System 

Fund Eliminations Total JEA

Operating revenues

Electric - base 378,802$          -$                -$                 378,802$     -$                 -$              (1,641)$          377,161$     

Electric - fuel and purchased power 209,742            15,767        (14,328)        211,181       -                   -                (6,173)            205,008       

Water and sewer -                       -                  -                   -                   212,035       -                (285)               211,750       

District energy system -                       -                  -                   -                   -                   3,952        (175)               3,777           

Other 11,253              457             -                   11,710         6,118           3               (1,670)            16,161         

Total operating revenues 599,797            16,224        (14,328)        601,693       218,153       3,955        (9,944)            813,857       

Operating expenses

Operations and maintenance:

Fuel 161,869            4,450          -                   166,319       -                   -                -                     166,319       

Purchased power 76,791              -                  (14,328)        62,463         -                   -                -                     62,463         

Maintenance and other operating expenses 123,751            2,219          -                   125,970       77,777         2,062        (9,944)            195,865       

Depreciation 107,504            205             -                   107,709       74,208         1,223        -                     183,140       

State utility and franchise taxes 29,175              -                  -                   29,175         5,161           -                -                     34,336         

Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net (901)                 7,030          -                   6,129           3,717           -                -                     9,846           

Total operating expenses 498,189            13,904        (14,328)        497,765       160,863       3,285        (9,944)            651,969       

Operating income 101,608            2,320          -                   103,928       57,290         670           -                     161,888       

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest on debt (38,660)            (5,219)         -                   (43,879)        (27,084)        (674)          -                     (71,637)        

Debt management strategy (4,593)              -                  -                   (4,593)          (1,000)          -                -                     (5,593)          

Investment income 12,518              1,888          -                   14,406         8,045           73             -                     22,524         

Allowance for funds used during construction 2,394                -                  -                   2,394           4,624           18             -                     7,036           

Other nonoperating income, net 2,136                172             -                   2,308           1,546           -                -                     3,854           

Earnings from The Energy Authority 743                   -                  -                   743              -                   -                -                     743              

Other interest, net (874)                 -                  -                   (874)             (70)               -                -                     (944)             

Total nonoperating expenses, net (26,336)            (3,159)         -                   (29,495)        (13,939)        (583)          -                     (44,017)        

Income before contributions 75,272              (839)            -                   74,433         43,351         87             -                     117,871       

Contributions (to) from

General Fund, City of Jacksonville, Florida (46,476)            -                  -                   (46,476)        (27,503)        -                -                     (73,979)        

Developers and other 2,124                -                  -                   2,124           37,905         -                -                     40,029         

Reduction of plant cost through contributions (2,124)           -               -                (2,124)       (24,463)     -             -                  (26,587)     

Total contributions, net (46,476)         -               -                (46,476)     (14,061)     -             -                  (60,537)     

Change in net position 28,796              (839)            -                   27,957         29,290         87             -                     57,334         

Net position, beginning of year 1,066,817         97,633        -                   1,164,450    1,585,326    5,533        -                     2,755,309    
Net position, end of period 1,095,613$       96,794$      -$                 1,192,407$  1,614,616$  5,620$      -$                   2,812,643$  



JEA Page 13

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

(in thousands - unaudited) for the six months ended March 2018

 Electric 
System and 
Bulk Power 

Supply System 
 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination 
of 

Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 
System 

Fund  Eliminations Total JEA

Operating revenues

Electric - base 391,902$          -$                -$                 391,902$     -$                 -$              (1,704)$          390,198$    

Electric - fuel and purchased power 233,488            76,030        (47,670)        261,848       -                   -                (6,412)            255,436      

Water and sewer -                       -                  -                   -                  206,709       -                (282)               206,427      

District energy system -                       -                  -                   -                  -                   4,075        (170)               3,905          

Other 11,039              54,925        -                   65,964         5,162           -                (1,304)            69,822        

Total operating revenues 636,429            130,955      (47,670)        719,714       211,871       4,075        (9,872)            925,788      

Operating expenses

Operations and maintenance:

Fuel 164,686            48,858        -                   213,544       -                   -                -                     213,544      

Purchased power 98,265              -                  (47,670)        50,595         -                   -                -                     50,595        

Maintenance and other operating expenses 115,297            54,485        -                   169,782       71,579         2,116        (9,872)            233,605      

Depreciation 104,356            10,791        -                   115,147       72,660         1,189        -                     188,996      

State utility and franchise taxes 29,523              -                  -                   29,523         5,148           -                -                     34,671        

Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net (1,362)              2,443          -                   1,081           2,005           -                -                     3,086          

Total operating expenses 510,765            116,577      (47,670)        579,672       151,392       3,305        (9,872)            724,497      

Operating income 125,664            14,378        -                   140,042       60,479         770           -                     201,291      

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Interest on debt (37,528)            (15,035)       -                   (52,563)       (28,049)        (686)          -                     (81,298)       

Debt management strategy (5,757)              -                  -                   (5,757)         (1,390)          -                -                     (7,147)         

Investment income 2,031                108             -                   2,139           976              39             -                     3,154          

Allowance for funds used during construction 1,513                -                  -                   1,513           3,326           28             -                     4,867          

Other nonoperating income, net 2,167                883             -                   3,050           1,481           -                -                     4,531          

Earnings from The Energy Authority 2,541                -                  -                   2,541           -                   -                -                     2,541          

Other interest, net (612)                 -                  -                   (612)            (94)               -                -                     (706)            

Total nonoperating expenses, net (35,645)            (14,044)       -                   (49,689)       (23,750)        (619)          -                     (74,058)       

Income before contributions 90,019              334             -                   90,353         36,729         151           -                     127,233      

Contributions (to) from

General Fund, City of Jacksonville, Florida (45,736)            -                  -                   (45,736)       (12,574)        -                -                     (58,310)       

Developers and other 662                   -                  -                   662              30,341         -                -                     31,003        

Reduction of plant cost through contributions (662)                 -                  -                   (662)            (18,669)        -                -                     (19,331)       

Total contributions, net (45,736)            -                  -                   (45,736)       (902)             -                -                     (46,638)       

Change in net position 44,283              334             -                   44,617         35,827         151           -                     80,595        

Net position, beginning of year, as restated 983,034            139,521      -                   1,122,555    1,501,263    5,004        -                     2,628,822   
Net position, end of period 1,027,317$       139,855$    -$                 1,167,172$  1,537,090$  5,155$      -$                   2,709,417$ 



JEA Page 14
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
(in thousands - unaudited) for the six months ended March 2019

 Electric 
System and 
Bulk Power 

Supply System 
 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination of 
Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 
System 
Fund  Eliminations Total JEA

Operating activities
Receipts from customers 609,954$          16,084$       (15,516)$       610,522$     216,516$    4,475$     (8,274)$       823,239$     
Payments to suppliers (341,159)           (8,139)          15,516           (333,782)      (51,412)       (1,839)      9,944          (377,089)      
Payments to employees (87,246)             (12)               -                     (87,258)        (33,561)       (296)         -                  (121,115)      
Other operating activities 16,019              457              -                     16,476         4,655          3               (1,670)         19,464         
Net cash provided by operating activities 197,568            8,390           -                     205,958       136,198      2,343       -                  344,499       

Noncapital and related financing activities
Contribution to General Fund, City of Jacksonville, Florida (46,353)             -                   -                     (46,353)        (27,537)       -                -                  (73,890)        
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (46,353)             -                   -                     (46,353)        (27,537)       -                -                  (73,890)        

Capital and related financing activities
Defeasance of debt (100,090)           -                   -                     (100,090)      (94,955)       -                -                  (195,045)      
Proceeds received from debt -                        -                   -                     -                   2,000          -                -                  2,000           
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (126,187)           -                   -                     (126,187)      (86,142)       (426)         -                  (212,755)      
Interest paid on debt (50,028)             (5,601)          -                     (55,629)        (34,934)       (680)         -                  (91,243)        
Repayment of debt principal (130,690)           (1,720)          -                     (132,410)      (51,720)       (1,660)      -                  (185,790)      
Capital contributions -                        -                   -                     -                   13,442        -                -                  13,442         
Other capital financing activities (6,038)               172              -                     (5,866)          (2,985)         -                -                  (8,851)          
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (413,033)           (7,149)          -                     (420,182)      (255,294)     (2,766)      -                  (678,242)      

Investing activities
Purchase of investments (217,499)           (85,713)        -                     (303,212)      (68,144)       -                -                  (371,356)      
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments 302,060            93,336         -                     395,396       157,435      -                -                  552,831       
Investment income 7,233                1,856           -                     9,089           4,340          73             -                  13,502         
Distributions from The Energy Authority 698                   -                   -                     698              -                  -                -                  698               
Net cash provided by investing activities 92,492              9,479           -                     101,971       93,631        73             -                  195,675       

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (169,326)           10,720         -                     (158,606)      (53,002)       (350)         -                  (211,958)      
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 285,814            139,953       -                     425,767       123,061      6,954       -                  555,782       
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 116,488$          150,673$     -$                   267,161$     70,059$      6,604$     -$                343,824$     

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income 101,608$          2,320$         -$                   103,928$     57,290$      670$        -$                161,888$     
Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization 107,504            205              -                     107,709       74,826        1,223       -                  183,758       
Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net (901)                  7,030           -                     6,129           3,717          -                -                  9,846           
Other nonoperating income, net 77                     -                   -                     77                307             -                -                  384               
Changes in noncash assets and noncash liabilities:

Accounts receivable 56,080              317              -                     56,397         302             523           -                  57,222         
Inventories 627                   1,295           -                     1,922           1,707          -                -                  3,629           
Other assets (1,552)               -                   -                     (1,552)          (290)            (9)             -                  (1,851)          
Accounts and accrued expenses payable (34,889)             (324)             -                     (35,213)        (3,456)         (48)           -                  (38,717)        
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets -                        (2,453)          -                     (2,453)          -                  -                -                  (2,453)          
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred inflows (30,986)             -                   -                     (30,986)        1,795          (16)           -                  (29,207)        

Net cash provided by operating activities 197,568$          8,390$         -$                   205,958$     136,198$    2,343$     -$                344,499$     

Noncash activity
Contribution of capital assets from developers 2,124$              -$                 -$                   2,124$         24,463$      -$             -$                26,587$       
Unrealized gains on fair value of investments, net 5,388$              43$              -$                   5,431$         3,837$        -$             -$                9,268$         



JEA Page 15
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
(in thousands - unaudited) for the six months ended March 2018

 Electric 
System and 
Bulk Power 

Supply System 
 SJRPP 
System 

 Elimination of 
Intercompany 
transactions 

 Total 
Electric 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 
System 
Fund  Eliminations Total JEA

Operating activities
Receipts from customers 651,287$          84,075$      (24,390)$       710,972$      213,902$    4,282$     (8,568)$       920,588$      
Payments to suppliers (338,319)           (79,590)      24,390           (393,519)       (53,930)       (1,850)      9,872          (439,427)       
Payments to employees (83,083)             (30,765)      -                     (113,848)       (31,718)       (293)         -                  (145,859)       
Other operating activities 4,910                54,925        -                     59,835           5,346          -                (1,304)         63,877          
Net cash provided by operating activities 234,795            28,645        -                     263,440         133,600      2,139       -                  399,179        

Noncapital and related financing activities
Contribution to General Fund, City of Jacksonville, Florida (45,802)             -                  -                     (45,802)         (12,451)       -                -                  (58,253)         
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (45,802)             -                  -                     (45,802)         (12,451)       -                -                  (58,253)         

Capital and related financing activities
Defeasance of debt (405,105)           (128,280)    -                     (533,385)       (460,305)     -                -                  (993,690)       
Proceeds received from debt 383,840            -                  -                     383,840         437,160      -                -                  821,000        
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (88,619)             -                  -                     (88,619)         (82,366)       (185)         -                  (171,170)       
Interest paid on debt (53,810)             (11,083)      -                     (64,893)         (39,062)       (691)         -                  (104,646)       
Repayment of debt principal (135,105)           (41,330)      -                     (176,435)       (51,020)       (1,640)      -                  (229,095)       
Capital contributions -                        -                  -                     -                     11,672        -                -                  11,672          
Other capital financing activities 24,044              (7,157)         -                     16,887           24,924        -                -                  41,811          
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (274,755)           (187,850)    -                     (462,605)       (158,997)     (2,516)      -                  (624,118)       

Investing activities
Purchase of investments (293,758)           (212,982)    -                     (506,740)       (165,753)     -                -                  (672,493)       
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments 183,146            403,266      -                     586,412         159,810      -                -                  746,222        
Investment income 4,710                (3,132)         -                     1,578             3,290          39             -                  4,907            
Distributions from The Energy Authority 2,785                -                  -                     2,785             -                  -                -                  2,785            
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (103,117)           187,152      -                     84,035           (2,653)         39             -                  81,421          

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (188,879)           27,947        -                     (160,932)       (40,501)       (338)         -                  (201,771)       
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 340,063            121,027      -                     461,090         145,909      7,035       -                  614,034        
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 151,184$          148,974$    -$                   300,158$      105,408$    6,697$     -$                412,263$      

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income 125,664$          14,378$      -$                   140,042$      60,479$      770$        -$                201,291$      
Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization 104,356            10,791        -                     115,147         73,308        1,189       -                  189,644        
Recognition of deferred costs and revenues, net (1,362)               2,443          -                     1,081             2,005          -                -                  3,086            
Other nonoperating income (loss), net 57                     701             -                     758                233             -                -                  991                
Changes in noncash assets and noncash liabilities:

Accounts receivable 63,628              7,344          -                     70,972           1,731          207           -                  72,910          
Inventories 1,797                8,464          -                     10,261           (4,365)         -                -                  5,896            
Other assets 2,837                -                  -                     2,837             116             (8)             -                  2,945            
Accounts and accrued expenses payable (16,709)             (13,999)      -                     (30,708)         (4,729)         (39)           -                  (35,476)         
Current liabilities payable from restricted assets -                        76               -                     76                  -                  -                -                  76                  
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred inflows (45,473)             (1,553)         -                     (47,026)         4,822          20             -                  (42,184)         

Net cash provided by operating activities 234,795$          28,645$      -$                   263,440$      133,600$    2,139$     -$                399,179$      

Noncash activity
Contribution of capital assets from developers 662$                 -$                -$                   662$              18,669$      -$             -$                19,331$        
Unrealized gains (losses) on fair value of investments, net (2,769)$             4,164$        -$                   1,395$           (2,251)$       -$             -$                (856)$            



JEA Page 16

Debt Service Coverage

March 2019
(unaudited)

2019 2018 2019 2018

Electric System

Senior debt service coverage, (annual minimum 1.20x) 5.29       x 5.20       x 5.35       x 6.76       x

Senior and subordinated debt service coverage, (annual minimum 1.15x) 2.30       x 1.82       x 2.30       x 2.36       x

Bulk Power Supply System
Debt service coverage, (annual minimum 1.15x) 1.76       x 7.27       x 2.26       x 3.23       x

St. Johns River Power Park, Second Resolution
Debt service coverage, (semi-annual minimum 1.15x) 1.16       x 1.21       x 1.17       x 1.20       x

Water and Sewer System
Senior debt service coverage, (annual minimum 1.25x) 3.54       x 3.60       x 3.26       x 3.22       x

Senior and subordinated debt service coverage excluding capacity fees (1) 2.71       x 2.79       x 2.50       x 2.49       x

Senior and subordinated debt service coverage including capacity fees (1) 2.97       x 3.02       x 2.74       x 2.70       x

District Energy System
Debt service coverage, (annual minimum 1.15x) 1.19       x 1.10       x 1.30       x 1.32       x

Month Year-to-Date
March March

(1) Annual minimum coverage is either 1.00x aggregate debt service and aggregate subordinated debt service (excluding capacity charges) or 
the sum of 1.00x aggregate debt service and 1.20x aggregate subordinated debt service (including capacity charges).



JEA Page 17

Electric System

Operating Statistics

(unaudited)

 Month Year-to-Date

2019  2018 Variance 2019 2018 Variance

Electric revenues sales (000s omitted):

Residential 42,554$         41,316$         3.00% 274,127$       285,484$       -3.98%

Commercial 30,764            30,127            2.11% 179,326         182,061         -1.50%

Industrial 16,411            15,750            4.20% 93,448            96,184            -2.84%

Public street lighting 1,089              1,066              2.16% 6,531              6,414              1.82%

Sales for resale - territorial -                      -                      -                      3,775              -100.00%

Electric revenues - territorial 90,818            88,259            2.90% 553,432         573,918         -3.57%

Sales for resale - off system 99                   112                 -11.61% 2,371              887                 167.31%

Electric revenues 90,917            88,371            2.88% 555,803         574,805         -3.31%

Rate stabilization & recovery 5,235              1,675              -212.54% 33,395            50,967            34.48%

Allowance for doubtful accounts (115)               (91)                 26.37% (654)               (382)               71.20%

Net electric revenues 96,037            89,955            6.76% 588,544         625,390         -5.89%

MWh sales

Residential 366,048         355,805         2.88% 2,381,049      2,488,118      -4.30%

Commercial 313,422         311,383         0.65% 1,823,396      1,856,096      -1.76%

Industrial 226,832         217,475         4.30% 1,284,850      1,304,795      -1.53%

Public street lighting 4,592              4,785              -4.03% 28,948            29,755            -2.71%

Sales for resale - territorial -                      -                      -                      38,640            -100.00%

Total MWh sales - territorial 910,894         889,448         2.41% 5,518,243      5,717,404      -3.48%

Sales for resale - off system 1,514              1,962              -22.83% 60,646            17,844            239.87%

Total MWh sales 912,408         891,410         2.36% 5,578,889      5,735,248      -2.73%

Number of accounts (1)

Residential 418,637         409,748         2.17% 416,499         408,120         2.05%

Commercial 52,987            52,342            1.23% 52,818            52,212            1.16%

Industrial 195                 196                 -0.51% 196                 198                 -1.01%

Public street lighting 3,847              3,760              2.31% 3,828              3,758              1.86%

Sales for resale - territorial -                      -                      -                      1                     -100.00%

Total average accounts 475,666         466,046         2.06% 473,341         464,289         1.95%

Residential averages

Revenue per account - $ 101.65            100.83            0.81% 658.17            699.51            -5.91%

kWh per account 874                 868                 0.69% 5,717              6,097              -6.23%

Revenue per kWh - ¢ 11.63              11.61              0.17% 11.51              11.47              0.35%

Degree days

Heating degree days 130                 202                 (72)                 933                 1,068              (135)               

Cooling degree days 58                   40                   18                   584                 590                 (6)                    

Total degree days 188                 242                 (54)                 1,517              1,658              (141)               

Degree days - 30 year average 210 1,651

(1) The year-to-date column represents a fiscal year-to-date average.

March March



JEA Page 18
Water and Sewer System
Operating Statistics
(unaudited)

Month Year-to-Date

2019 2018 Variance 2019 2018 Variance
Water
Revenues (000s omitted):

Residential 8,086$           7,880$           2.61% 45,765$         44,937$         1.84%
Commercial and industrial 4,169             3,907             6.71% 23,488           23,425           0.27%
Irrigation 2,443             2,972             -17.80% 14,327           15,164           -5.52%

Total water revenues 14,698           14,759           -0.41% 83,580           83,526           0.06%
Less: rate stabilization (390)               (269)               44.98% (936)               (1,982)            -52.77%
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (23)                 (20)                 15.00% (94)                 (116)               -18.97%

Net water revenues 14,285$         14,470$         -1.28% 82,550$         81,428$         1.38%

Kgal sales (000s omitted)
Residential 1,440,908      1,516,391      -4.98% 8,101,801      8,175,877      -0.91%
Commercial and industrial 1,203,356      1,153,925      4.28% 6,759,953      6,848,406      -1.29%
Irrigation 369,702         520,503         -28.97% 2,179,747      2,421,567      -9.99%

Total kgals sales 3,013,966      3,190,819      -5.54% 17,041,501    17,445,850    -2.32%

Number of accounts (1):
Residential 292,110         285,007         2.49% 290,651         283,572         2.50%
Commercial and industrial 25,992           25,680           1.21% 25,887           25,620           1.04%
Irrigation 37,118           37,033           0.23% 37,102           36,974           0.35%

Total average accounts 355,220         347,720         2.16% 353,640         346,166         2.16%

Residential averages:
Revenue per account - $ 27.68             27.65             0.11% 157.46           158.47           -0.64%
Kgals per account 4.93               5.32               -7.33% 27.87             28.83             -3.33%
Revenue per kgals - $ 5.61               5.20               7.88% 5.65               5.50               2.73%

Sewer
Revenues (000s omitted):

Residential 12,244$         11,965$         2.33% 69,382$         68,149$         1.81%
Commercial and industrial 9,397             8,805             6.72% 54,641           54,113           0.98%

Total sewer revenues 21,641           20,770           4.19% 124,023         122,262         1.44%
Less: rate stabilization (608)               (402)               51.24% (1,469)            (3,048)            -51.80%
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (32)                 (30)                 6.67% (140)               (173)               -19.08%

Net sewer revenues 21,001           20,338           3.26% 122,414         119,041         2.83%

Kgal sales (000s omitted)
Residential 1,239,456      1,280,439      -3.20% 7,101,509      7,054,064      0.67%
Commercial and industrial 1,006,041      944,545         6.51% 5,890,956      5,866,708      0.41%

Total kgals sales 2,245,497      2,224,984      0.92% 12,992,465    12,920,772    0.55%

Number of accounts (1):
Residential 258,986         252,163         2.71% 257,562         250,775         2.71%
Commercial and industrial 18,533           18,325           1.14% 18,455           18,299           0.85%

Total average accounts 277,519         270,488         2.60% 276,017         269,074         2.58%

Residential averages:
Revenue per account - $ 47.28             47.45             -0.36% 269.38           271.75           -0.87%
kgals per account 4.79               5.08               -5.71% 27.57             28.13             -1.99%
Revenue per kgals - $ 9.88               9.34               5.78% 9.77               9.66               1.14%

Reuse
Revenues (000s omitted):

Reuse revenues 1,230$           1,253$           -1.84% 7,071$           6,240$           13.32%

Kgal sales (000s omitted)
Reuse sales (kgals) 252,014 286,318 -11.98% 1,451,809 1,444,461 0.51%

Number of accounts (1):
Reuse accounts 14,174 11,360 24.77% 13,558 10,903 24.35%

Rainfall Diff in inches Diff in inches

Normal 3.95               3.95               19.28             19.28             

Actual 2.04               2.14               (0.10) 19.71             16.55             3.16
Rain Days 10                  8                    2                  57                  43                  14                 

(1) The year-to-date column represents a fiscal year-to-date average.

March March



Appendix



JEA Page 19
Schedule of Cash and Investments
(in thousands - unaudited) March 2019

 Electric 
System and 
Bulk Power 

Supply 
 SJRPP 
System 

 Total Electric 
Enterprise 

Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 

System Fund Total JEA
Unrestricted cash and investments

Operations 62,224$           48,805$           111,029$         39,115$           1,483$             151,627$         
Rate stabilization:

Fuel 44,208             -                       44,208             -                       -                       44,208             
Debt management 29,884             -                       29,884             14,209             2,737               46,830             
Environmental 44,138             -                       44,138             15,319             -                       59,457             
Purchased Power 47,564             -                       47,564             -                       -                       47,564             
DSM/Conservation 4,197               -                       4,197               -                       -                       4,197               

Total rate stabilization funds 169,991           -                       169,991           29,528             2,737               202,256           
Customer deposits 44,543             -                       44,543             15,958             -                       60,501             
General reserve -                       19,213             19,213             -                       -                       19,213             
Self insurance reserve funds:

Self funded health plan 10,221             -                       10,221             -                       -                       10,221             
Property insurance reserve 10,000             -                       10,000             -                       -                       10,000             

Total self insurance reserve funds 20,221             -                       20,221             -                       -                       20,221             
Environmental liability reserve 16,808             -                       16,808             -                       -                       16,808             

Total unrestricted cash and investments 313,787$         68,018$           381,805$         84,601$           4,220$             470,626$         

Restricted assets
Renewal and replacement funds 65,955$           48,931$           114,886$         38,856$           873$                154,615$         
Debt service reserve account 65,433             11,444             76,877             63,442             -                       140,319           
Debt service funds 92,658             12,619             105,277           53,663             1,511               160,451           
Environmental funds -                       -                       -                       533                  -                       533                  
Construction funds 201                  -                       201                  29,781             -                       29,982             

Subtotal 224,247           72,994             297,241           186,275           2,384               485,900           
Unrealized holding gain (loss) on investments 2,086               98                    2,184               2,490               -                       4,674               
Other funds -                       27,355             27,355             -                       -                       27,355             

Total restricted cash and investments 226,333$         100,447$         326,780$         188,765$         2,384$             517,929$         

JEA
Schedule of Cash and Investments
(in thousands) September 2018

 Electric 
System and 
Bulk Power 

Supply 
 SJRPP 
System 

 Total Electric 
Enterprise 

Fund 

 Water and 
Sewer 

Enterprise 
Fund 

 District 
Energy 

System Fund Total JEA
Unrestricted cash and investments

Operations 86,294$           49,416$           135,710$         43,480$           799$                179,989$         
Rate stabilization:

Fuel 74,376             -                       74,376             -                       -                       74,376             
Debt management 29,884             -                       29,884             14,209             2,737               46,830             
Environmental 42,163             -                       42,163             12,914             -                       55,077             
Purchased Power 53,493             -                       53,493             -                       -                       53,493             
DSM/Conservation 3,470               -                       3,470               -                       -                       3,470               

Total rate stabilization funds 203,386           -                       203,386           27,123             2,737               233,246           
Customer deposits 44,242             -                       44,242             15,616             -                       59,858             
General reserve -                       18,466             18,466             -                       -                       18,466             
Self insurance reserve funds:

Self funded health plan 8,139               -                       8,139               -                       -                       8,139               
Property insurance reserve 10,000             -                       10,000             -                       -                       10,000             

Total self insurance reserve funds 18,139             -                       18,139             -                       -                       18,139             
Environmental liability reserve 16,818             -                       16,818             -                       -                       16,818             

Total unrestricted cash and investments 368,879$         67,882$           436,761$         86,219$           3,536$             526,516$         

Restricted assets
Renewal and replacement funds 189,922$         52,610$           242,532$         141,415$         1,078$             385,025$         
Debt service reserve account 65,433             11,307             76,740             102,850           -                       179,590           
Debt service funds 167,483           7,446               174,929           81,242             2,340               258,511           
Construction funds 203                  -                       203                  284                  -                       487                  
Environmental funds -                       -                       -                       1,159               -                       1,159               

Subtotal 423,041           71,363             494,404           326,950           3,418               824,772           
Unrealized holding gain (loss) on investments (3,302)              66                    (3,236)              (1,347)              -                       (4,583)              
Other funds -                       26,014             26,014             -                       -                       26,014             

Total restricted cash and investments 419,739$         97,443$           517,182$         325,603$         3,418$             846,203$         



JEA Page 20

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO REPORT
March 2019
(unaudited)
All Funds

% OF
INVESTMENT BOOK VALUE YIELD TOTAL

         * Treasuries 102,367,706$    2.33% 10.41%

Agencies
Federal Farm Credit Bank 40,037,165        1.66% 4.07%
Federal Home Loan Bank 224,765,892      2.29% 22.85%
Total 264,803,057      2.19% 26.92%

Municipal Bonds 201,136,793      2.72% 20.45%

Commercial Paper 71,730,777        2.70% 7.29%

U.S. Treasury Money Market Funds (1) 50,088,573        2.33% 5.09%

Agency Money Market Funds (2) 47,725,000        2.37% 4.85%

FEITF Money Market Fund 7,500,000          2.56% 0.76%

Florida Prime Fund 157,596,000      2.64% 16.02%

Wells Fargo Bank Accounts (3)
   Electric, Scherer 42,272,035        2.28% 4.30%
   SJRPP 8,121,551          2.28% 0.83%
   Water & Sewer, DES 30,385,488        2.28% 3.09%

Total Portfolio 983,726,981$    2.46% 100.00%

         * Backed by Full Faith and Credit of U. S. Government

Weighted Avg. Annual Yield for March 2019, Excluding Bank & Money Market Funds: 2.44%

Weighted Avg. Annual Yield for March 2019, Including Bank & Money Market Funds: 2.46%

Some investments listed above may be classified as Cash Equivalents on the Statements of
Net Position in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(1)  Fidelity Treasury Fund 
(2)  State Street Government Fund 
(3)  Month-end bank balances



JEA Page 21
Electric System, St. Johns River Power Park System and Scherer
Schedule of Outstanding Indebtedness

(unaudited)

Par Amount Current
Principal Principal Portion of 

Issue/Average Coupon Rate Interest Rates Payment Dates Outstanding Long-Term Debt
Electric System - Fixed Rate Bonds

Series Three 2004 A 5.000% 2039 5,000$                -$                        
Series Three 2005 B 4.750% 2033 100,000              -                          
Series Three 2009 D - BABs 6.056% 2033-2044 45,955,000         -                          
Series Three 2010 A 4.000% 2019 5,070,000           5,070,000           
Series Three 2010 C 4.500% 2031 1,290,000           -                          
Series Three 2010 D 4.250 - 5.000% 2020-2038 1,205,000           -                          
Series Three 2010 E - BABs 5.350 - 5.482% 2028-2040 34,255,000         -                          
Series Three 2012A 4.000 - 4.500% 2027-2033 16,210,000         -                          
Series Three 2012B 2.000 - 5.000% 2019-2039 85,615,000         725,000              
Series Three 2013A 3.000 - 5.000% 2019-2026 49,050,000         8,990,000           
Series Three 2013B 3.000 - 5.000% 2026-2038 7,500,000           -                          
Series Three 2013C 4.600 - 5.000% 2019-2030 10,555,000         1,700,000           
Series Three 2014A 3.500 - 5.000% 2019-2034 9,350,000           1,285,000           
Series Three 2015A 3.000 - 5.000% 2019-2041 59,005,000         155,000              
Series Three 2015B 3.375 - 5.000% 2019-2031 17,225,000         6,945,000           
Series Three 2017A 5.000% 2019 18,670,000         18,670,000         
Series Three 2017B 3.375 - 5.000% 2026-2039 198,095,000       -                          
Total Fixed Rate Senior Bonds 559,155,000       43,540,000         
2009 Series F - BABs 4.900 - 6.406% 2019-2034 62,155,000         1,550,000           
2009 Series G 4.000 - 5.000% 2019 14,665,000         14,665,000         
2010 Series B 4.000 - 5.000% 2019-2020 3,115,000           960,000              
2010 Series D - BABs 4.150 - 5.582% 2019-2027 42,050,000         2,705,000           
2012 Series A 3.250 - 5.000% 2019-2033 55,515,000         2,655,000           
2012 Series B 3.250 - 5.000% 2019-2037 50,030,000         2,215,000           
2013 Series A 3.000 - 5.000% 2019-2030 37,330,000         2,780,000           
2013 Series B 3.000 - 5.000% 2019-2026 17,165,000         2,870,000           
2013 Series C 1.375 - 5.000% 2019-2038 74,750,000         885,000              
2013 Series D 4.375 - 5.250% 2019-2035 50,115,000         20,830,000         
2014 Series A 4.000 - 5.000% 2019-2039 94,265,000         14,635,000         
2017 Series A 3.000% 2019 1,290,000           1,290,000           
2017 Series B 3.375 - 5.000% 2019-2034 171,700,000       1,055,000           
Total Fixed Rate Subordinated Bonds 674,145,000       69,095,000         
Total Fixed Rate Electric System Bonds/4.551% 1,233,300,000    112,635,000       

Electric System - Variable Rate Bonds Current Interest Rates (1)
Series Three 2008 A - Weekly 1.690% 2027-2036 51,680,000         -                          
Series Three 2008 B-1 - Weekly 2.116% 2019-2040 59,620,000         425,000              
Series Three 2008 B-2 - Weekly 1.690% 2025-2040 41,900,000         -                          
Series Three 2008 B-3 - Weekly 1.690% 2024-2036 37,000,000         -                          
Series Three 2008 B-4 - Weekly 2.116% 2019-2036 49,010,000         425,000              
Series Three 2008 C-1 - Weekly 1.704% 2024-2034 44,145,000         -                          
Series Three 2008 C-2 - Weekly 1.704% 2024-2034 43,900,000         -                          
Series Three 2008 C-3 - Flex 1.877% 2030-2038 25,000,000         -                          
Series Three 2008 D-1 - Weekly 2.116% 2019-2036 106,275,000       2,745,000           
Total Variable Rate Senior Bonds 458,530,000       3,595,000           
Series 2000 A - Flex 1.848% 2021-2035 30,965,000         -                          
Series 2000 F-1 - Flex 1.850% 2026-2030 37,200,000         -                          
Series 2000 F-2 - Flex 1.881% 2026-2030 24,800,000         -                          
Series 2008 D - Daily 1.600% 2024-2038 39,455,000         -                          
Total Variable Rate Subordinated Bonds 132,420,000       -                          
Total Variable Rate Bonds 590,950,000       3,595,000           
Total Electric System Bonds 1,824,250,000    116,230,000       

St. Johns River Power Park - Fixed Rate Bonds
Issue 3 Series 1 4.500% 2037 100,000              -                          
Issue 3 Series 2 5.000% 2034-2037 29,370,000         -                          
Issue 3 Series 4 - BABs 4.700 - 5.450% 2019-2028 20,690,000         1,775,000           
Issue 3 Series 6 2.375 - 5.000% 2019-2037 91,330,000         5,680,000           
Issue 3 Series 7 2.000 - 5.000% 2019-2033 79,500,000         4,120,000           
Issue 3 Series 8 2.000 - 5.000% 2019-2039 57,895,000         2,205,000           
Total Fixed Rate St. Johns River Power Park Bonds/4.014% 278,885,000       13,780,000         

Bulk Power Supply System, Scherer 4 Project - Fixed Rate Bonds
Series 2010A - BABs 4.800 - 5.920% 2019-2030 34,355,000         2,140,000           
Series 2014A 2.000 - 4.125% 2019-2038 60,655,000         4,010,000           
Total Fixed Rate Bulk Power Supply System Bonds/4.324% 95,010,000         6,150,000           
Weighted Average Cost(2) / Total Outstanding Debt 3.423% 2,198,145,000$  136,160,000$     

(1) Current month interest rate excluding variable debt fees.

(2) Weighted Average Cost of debt is net of BABs subsidy, original issue premiums/discounts and excludes variable debt liquidity/remarketing fees and

interest rate swap payments.

Current YTD Prior YTD Year End Target
•  Debt Ratio - Electric Entrerprise Fund 67.5% 71.1% 63.9%

       Electric System      Power Park  Issue Three
•  Remaining New Money Authorization 465,160,992$                   103,865,000                     
•  Remaining Senior Refunding Authorization 1,022,837,381$                250,810,000                     
•  Remaining Subordinated Refunding Authorization 634,898,000$                   n/a

March 2019



JEA Page 22
Water and Sewer System
Schedule of Outstanding Indebtedness

(unaudited)

Par Amount Current
Principal Principal Portion of 

Issue/Average Coupon Rate Interest Rates Payment Dates Outstanding Long-Term Debt

Fixed Rate Bonds
2009 Series B 3.7500% 2019 8,915,000$          8,915,000$          
2010 Series A  - BABs 6.210 - 6.310% 2026-2044 83,115,000          -                           
2010 Series B  - Taxable 5.200 - 5.700% 2019-2025 12,110,000          1,730,000            
2010 Series D 4.000 - 5.000% 2019-2039 24,125,000          5,015,000            
2010 Series E 4.000 - 5.000% 2023-2039 8,570,000            -                           
2010 Series F  - BABs 3.900 - 5.887% 2019-2040 42,095,000          2,395,000            
2012 Series A 3.000 - 5.000% 2019-2041 153,175,000        1,070,000            
2012 Series B 2.250 - 5.000% 2019-2037 73,270,000          1,280,000            
2013 Series A 4.500 - 5.000% 2019-2027 17,575,000          12,580,000          
2014 Series A 2.000 - 5.000% 2019-2040 212,960,000        5,625,000            
2017 Series A 3.125 - 5.000% 2022-2041 360,775,000        -                           

Total Fixed Rate Senior Bonds 996,685,000        38,610,000          
2010 Series A 5.000% 2019 2,790,000            2,790,000            
2010 Series B 4.000 - 5.000% 2023-2025 2,060,000            -                           
2012 Series B 3.250 - 5.000% 2030-2043 29,685,000          -                           
2013 Series A 2.125 - 5.000% 2019-2029 25,210,000          5,365,000            
2017 Series A 2.750 - 5.000% 2021-2034 58,940,000          -                           

Total Fixed Rate Subordinated Bonds 118,685,000        8,155,000            
Total Fixed Rate Bonds/4.528% 1,115,370,000     46,765,000          

Variable Rate Bonds Current Interest Rates (1)
2006 Series B - CPI Bonds      3.931% (2) 2019-2022 24,850,000          5,740,000            
2008 Series A-2 - Weekly 1.633% 2028-2042 51,820,000          -                           
2008 Series B - Weekly 1.696% 2023-2041 85,290,000          -                           

Total Variable Rate Senior Bonds 161,960,000        5,740,000            
2008 Series A-1 - Daily 1.420% 2019-2038 48,850,000          2,200,000            
2008 Series A-2 - Weekly 1.633% 2030-2038 25,600,000          -                           
2008 Series B-1 - Weekly 1.668% 2030-2036 30,885,000          -                           

Total Variable Rate Subordinated Bonds 105,335,000        2,200,000            
Total Variable Rate Bonds 267,295,000        7,940,000            

Other Obligations
Revolving Credit Agreement 3.644% 2021 5,000,000            -                           

Total Other Obligations 5,000,000            -                           
Weighted Average Cost(3) / Total Outstanding Debt 3.595% 1,387,665,000$   54,705,000$        

(1) Current month interest rate excluding variable debt fees.

(2) Designated swap obligation. The rate shown is the weighted average of the variable CPI Index rates for the 6 month re-set period.

(3) Weighted Average Cost of debt is net of BABs subsidy, original issue premiums/discounts and excludes variable debt liquidity/remarketing fees and

interest rate swap payments.

Current YTD Prior YTD Year End Target
•  Debt Ratio - Water and Sewer 46.6% 51.6% 44.0%

•  Remaining New Money Authorization 218,078,023$                    
•  Remaining Refunding Authorization 794,813,942$                    

JEA
District Energy System
Principal Amount of Debt Outstanding and Average Interest Rates

(unaudited)

Par Amount Current
Principal Principal Portion of 

Issue/Average Coupon Interest Rates Payment Dates Outstanding Long-Term Debt

Fixed Rate Bonds 
2013 Series A/4.184% 2.065 - 4.538% 2019-2034 34,825,000$        1,690,000$          

Weighted Average Cost(1) / Total Outstanding Debt 4.188% 34,825,000$        1,690,000$          

(1) Weighted Average Cost of debt is net of original issue premiums/discounts.

54,321,245$                      
106,670,000$                    •  Remaining Refunding Authorization

March 2019

March 2019

•  Remaining New Money Authorization



JEA Page 23

Interest Rate Swap Position Report
March 2019
(unaudited)

 ID  Dealer 
 Effective 

Date 
 Termination 

Date 

 Electric 
System 

Allocation 
 Water/Sewer 

Allocation 
 Fixed 
Rate 

 Floating 
Rate (1)  Spread 

 Rate 
Cap  Index 

1            Goldman Sachs  9/18/2003 9/18/2033 84,800,000$   -$                      3.717  1.693       2.024      n/a 68% 1 mth Libor
3            Morgan Stanley  1/27/2005 10/1/2039 82,575,000     -                        4.351  1.616       2.734      n/a SIFMA
4            JPMorgan           1/27/2005 10/1/2035 85,200,000     -                        3.661  1.693       1.968      n/a 68% 1 mth Libor
6            JPMorgan           1/27/2005 10/1/2037 39,175,000     -                        3.716  1.693       2.023      n/a 68% 1 mth Libor

7            Morgan Stanley 10/31/2006 10/1/2022 -                      24,850,000        4.039  3.931       0.108      n/a CPI 

8            Morgan Stanley  1/31/2007 10/1/2031 62,980,000     -                        3.907  1.616       2.291      n/a SIFMA

9            Merrill Lynch 3/8/2007 10/1/2041 -                      85,290,000        3.895  1.616       2.279      n/a SIFMA

10          Goldman Sachs 1/31/2008 10/1/2036 51,680,000     -                        3.836  1.616       2.220      n/a SIFMA
Total 406,410,000$ 110,140,000$    Wtd Avg Spread 2.130      

Note: (1) The "Floating Rate" column is the average of the floating rate for each instrument for this month.

 JEA Debt Management Swaps Variable to Fixed  



JEA Page 24
Electric System
Production Statistics
(unaudited)

2019 2018 Variance 2019 2018 Variance

Generated power:
Steam:
Fuel oil
  Fuel expense 187,721$            51,420$              265.07% 324,124$             4,331,122$           -92.52%
  Barrels #6 oil consumed 1,733                  475                     264.84% 2,947                   40,030                  -92.64%
  $/ per barrel consumed 108.32$              108.25$              0.06% 109.98$               108.20$                1.65%
  kWh oil generated (1) -                          -                          1,092,734            23,686,188           -95.39%
  Cost per MWh - oil -$                    -$                    296.62$               182.85$                62.22%
Natural gas units #1-3
  Gas expense - variable 7,001,591$         5,926,444$         18.14% 28,871,754$        18,731,658$         54.13%
  MMBTU's consumed 2,373,117           1,853,448           28.04% 8,138,524            5,648,106             44.09%
  $/ per MMBTU consumed 2.95$                  3.20$                  -7.73% 3.55$                   3.32$                    6.97%
  kWh - gas generated (1) 223,820,448       172,554,904       29.71% 751,333,149        518,361,218         44.94%
  Cost per MWh - gas 31.28$                34.35$                -8.92% 38.43$                 36.14$                  6.34%

  Cost per MWh - gas & oil - steam 32.12$                34.64$                -7.28% 38.80$                 42.55$                  -8.80%

Coal
   Coal expense 2,043,792$         1,838,507$         11.17% 13,255,042$        12,997,575$         1.98%
   kWh generated 57,236,968         59,514,999         -3.83% 324,491,395        380,365,621         -14.69%
   Cost per MWh - coal 35.71$                30.89$                15.59% 40.85$                 34.17$                  19.54%
Pet coke and limestone
   Expense 3,061,501$         3,213,701$         -4.74% 21,310,218$        25,581,779$         -16.70%
   kWh generated 85,531,834         80,056,729         6.84% 581,555,854        686,293,235         -15.26%
   Cost per MWh - pet coke and limestone 35.79$                40.14$                -10.83% 36.64$                 37.28$                  -1.70%

   Cost per MWh - coal & petcoke - steam 35.76$                36.20$                -1.21% 38.15$                 36.17$                  5.48%

Combustion turbine:
Fuel oil
  Fuel expense 83,932$              172,299$            -51.29% 921,367$             3,040,135$           -69.69%
  Barrels #2 oil consumed 465                     1,551                  -70.02% 6,876                   33,258                  -79.33%
  $/ per barrel consumed 180.50$              111.09$              62.48% 134.00$               91.41$                  46.59%
  kWh - oil generated 97,915                584,833              -83.26% 2,400,300            13,397,320           -82.08%
  Cost per MWh - oil 857.19$              294.61$              190.96% 383.85$               226.92$                69.16%

Natural gas (includes landfill)
  Gas expense Kennedy & landfill - variable 354,318$            40,318$              778.81% 1,994,683$          1,186,545$           68.11%
  MMBTU's consumed 122,328              10,516                1063.26% 531,342               350,019                51.80%
  $/ per MMBTU consumed 2.90$                  3.83$                  -24.45% 3.75$                   3.39$                    10.74%
  kWh - gas generated (1) 11,081,764         503,634              2100.36% 44,748,387          28,381,938           57.67%
  Cost per MWh - gas 31.97$                80.05$                -60.06% 44.58$                 41.81$                  6.62%

  Gas expense BB simple - variable 16,287$              42,615$              -61.78% 2,125,263$          1,145,438$           85.54%
  MMBTU's consumed 11,276$              15,679                -28.08% 573,063               346,246                65.51%
  $/ per MMBTU consumed 1.44$                  2.72$                  -46.86% 3.71$                   3.31$                    12.10%
  kWh - gas generated (1) 697,664              1,031,900           -32.39% 50,053,067          28,643,976           74.74%
  Cost per MWh - gas simple 23.35$                41.30$                -43.47% 42.46$                 39.99$                  6.18%

  Gas expense BB combined - variable (586,111)$           6,595,729$         -108.89% 43,653,141$        44,366,913$         -1.61%
  MMBTU's consumed 108,252              2,380,506           -95.45% 11,950,110          14,184,903           -15.75%
  $/ per MMBTU consumed (5.41)$                 2.77$                  -295.41% 3.65$                   3.13$                    16.79%
  kWh - gas generated (1) 16,928,485         335,024,943       -94.95% 1,746,619,536     2,015,317,930      -13.33%
  Cost per MWh - gas combined (34.62)$               19.69$                -275.86% 24.99$                 22.01$                  13.53%

  Gas expense GEC simple - variable 293,344$            225,038$            30.35% 3,439,907$          5,667,182$           -39.30%
  MMBTU's consumed 93,801                56,903                64.84% 1,117,553            1,095,198             2.04%
  $/ per MMBTU consumed 3.13$                  3.95$                  -20.92% 3.08$                   5.17$                    -40.52%
  kWh - gas generated 8,363,881           4,842,307           72.73% 98,022,893          96,887,193           1.17%
  Cost per MWh - gas simple 35.07$                46.47$                -24.53% 35.09$                 58.49$                  -40.00%

  Cost per MWh - gas & oil ct 4.35$                  20.69$                -78.97% 26.85$                 25.39$                  5.76%

  Natural gas expense - fixed 4,337,248$         3,058,561$         41.81% 20,532,140$        19,415,301$         5.75%

Total generated power:
  Fuels expense 16,793,623$       21,164,632$       -20.65% 136,427,639$      136,463,648$       -0.03%
  kWh generated 403,758,959       654,114,249       -38.27% 3,600,317,315     3,791,334,619      -5.04%
  Cost per MWh 41.59$                32.36$                28.55% 37.89$                 35.99$                  5.28%

(1) Allocation of kWh generated is based upon a ratio of gas MBTU's (adjusted to oil equivalent - 95.5%) and oil MBTU's.

Cost of fuels
Fuel oil #6 187,721$            51,420$              324,124$             4,331,122$           
Natural gas units #1-3 with landfill - variable 7,001,591           5,926,444           28,871,754          18,731,658           
Coal 2,043,792           1,838,507           13,255,042          12,997,575           
Petcoke 3,061,501           3,213,701           21,310,218          25,581,779           
Fuel oil #2 83,932                172,299              921,367               3,040,135             
Natural gas - simple cycle (BB & GEC) - variable 663,949              307,971              7,559,853            7,999,165             
Natural gas - combined (BB) - variable (586,111)             6,595,729           43,653,141          44,366,913           
Natural gas - fixed 4,337,248           3,058,561           20,532,140          19,415,301           
Total 16,793,623$       21,164,632$       136,427,639$      136,463,648$       

Month
March

Year-to-Date
March



JEA Page 25
Electric System
Production Statistics (Continued)
(unaudited)

2019 2018 Variance 2019 2018 Variance

Production Statistics (Continued)
Purchased power:
Plant Scherer

  Purchases 5,684,106$        6,877,294$         -17.35% 32,340,551$        33,074,906$         -2.22%

  kWh purchased 144,103,000      24,382,000         491.02% 724,731,000        577,688,000         25.45%

  Cost per MWh 39.44$               282.06$              -86.02% 44.62$                 57.25$                  -22.06%

TEA & other

  Purchases 13,336,206$      7,180,210$         85.74% 62,462,879$        50,594,557$         23.46%

  kWh purchased 360,127,779      225,474,865       59.72% 1,472,974,878     1,035,274,972      42.28%

  Cost per MWh 37.03$               31.84$                16.29% 42.41$                 48.87$                  -13.23%

SJRPP

  Purchases 2,422,532$        2,319,293$         4.45% 14,328,008$        47,670,397$         -69.94%

  kWh purchased -                         -                          -                           539,759,000         -100.00%

  Cost per MWh 88.32$                  

Total purchased power:

  Purchases 21,442,844$      16,376,797$       30.93% 109,131,438$      131,339,860$       -16.91%

  kWh purchased 504,230,779      249,856,865       101.81% 2,197,705,878     2,152,721,972      2.09%

  Cost per MWh 42.53$               65.54$                -35.12% 49.66$                 61.01$                  -18.61%

Subtotal - generated

and purchased power: 38,236,467$      37,541,429$       1.85% 245,559,077$      267,803,508$       -8.31%

Fuel interchange sales (46,359)              (64,122)               -27.70% (2,068,418)           (588,558)               251.44%

Earnings of The Energy Authority 12,979               141,195              -90.81% (745,435)              (2,545,310)            -70.71%

Realized and Unrealized (Gains) Losses 761,820             (10,920)               -7076.37% (3,876,380)           1,952,860             -298.50%

Fuel procurement and handling 927,053             1,182,675           -21.61% 6,373,586            5,341,056             19.33%

By product reuse 596,658             1,222,157           -51.18% 3,463,319            6,661,684             -48.01%

Total generated and net purchased power:

  Cost, net 40,488,618        40,012,414         1.19% 248,705,749        278,625,240         -10.74%

  kWh generated and purchased 907,989,738      903,971,114       0.44% 5,798,023,193     5,944,056,591      -2.46%

  Cost per MWh 44.59$               44.26$                0.74% 42.89$                 46.87$                  -8.49%

Reconciliation:

Generated and purchased power per above 40,488,618$      44.59$                248,705,749$      42.89$                  

SJRPP operating expenses:

     SJRPP O & M (264,813)            (0.29)                   (2,314,318)           (0.40)                     

     SJRPP debt service (1,902,089)         (2.09)                   (10,479,914)         (1.81)                     

     SJRPP R & R (255,629)            (0.28)                   (1,533,776)           (0.26)                     

SCHERER operating expenses:

      Scherer power production  (538,066)            (0.59)                   (3,401,986)           (0.59)                     

      Scherer R & R (535,270)            (0.59)                   (5,872,695)           (1.01)                     

      Scherer transmission  (503,815)            (0.55)                   (2,928,318)           (0.51)                     

      Scherer taxes (105,624)            (0.12)                   (656,904)              (0.11)                     

Florida and other capacity (1,330,764)         (1.47)                   (7,934,382)           (1.37)                     

MEAG (1,016,124)         (1.12)                   (5,929,285)           (1.02)                     

Rounding (1)                       (0.00)                   (1)                         (0.00)                     

Energy expense per budget page 34,036,423$      37.49$                207,654,170$      35.81$                  

Month
March

Year-to-Date
March



JEA Page 26
Electric System Month

Budget vs. Actual ANNUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL Variance ACTUAL Variance
March 2019 and 2018 (unaudited) 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 % 2017-18 %
Fuel Related Revenues & Expenses

Fuel Rate Revenues 422,782,362$            30,994,814$              29,346,920$              -5.32% 28,619,649$              2.54%

Fuel Expense and Purchased Power:
Fuel Expense - Energy System 327,822,632              25,219,477                19,079,155                23,558,544                
Fuel Expense - SJRPP 1,554,666                  -                                 -                                 207,345                     
Other Purchased Power 108,921,904              10,084,414                14,957,268                5,731,197                  
    Subtotal Energy Expense 438,299,202              35,303,891                34,036,423                3.59% 29,497,086                -15.39%

Transfer to (from) Rate Stabilization, Net (16,151,013)               (4,361,925)                 (4,737,751)                 (910,535)                    
Fuel Related Uncollectibles 634,173                     52,848                       48,248                       33,098                       
Total 422,782,362              30,994,814                29,346,920                5.32% 28,619,649                -2.54%

Fuel Balance -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 

Nonfuel Related Revenues 
Base Rate Revenues 812,153,353              59,540,190                56,896,059                55,012,210                
Conservation Charge Revenue 1,000,000                  73,312                       16,676                       19,180                       
Environmental Charge Revenue 8,039,817                  589,411                     558,720                     545,690                     
Investment Income 11,600,594                966,716                     1,371,145                  1,407,585                  
Natural Gas Revenue Pass Through 2,464,374                  205,365                     60,048                       54,051                       
Other Revenues 136,958,120              2,355,274                  2,139,149                  1,917,155                  
Total 972,216,258              63,730,268                61,041,797                -4.22% 58,955,871                3.54%

Nonfuel Related Expenses
Non-Fuel O&M 221,286,372              16,348,655                18,441,332                16,729,098                
DSM / Conservation O&M 8,126,797                  669,931                     465,027                     732,226                     
Environmental O&M 3,071,529                  161,292                     14,963                       29,670                       
Rate Stabilization - DSM (536,783)                    (44,732)                      (23,972)                      (282,159)                    
Rate Stabilization - Environmental 4,968,288                  490,789                     543,758                     516,021                     
Natural Gas Expense Pass Through 2,418,255                  200,718                     60,308                       53,938                       
Debt Principal - Energy System 116,230,000              9,685,833                  9,685,833                  10,433,929                
Debt Interest  - Energy System 87,438,843                7,286,570                  7,336,851                  7,792,737                  
Bond Buy-Back - Energy System 108,694,829              -                                 -                                 -                                 
R&R - Energy System 64,447,700                5,370,642                  5,370,642                  5,467,400                  
Operating Capital Outlay 183,115,980              -                                 -                                 -                                 
City Contribution Expense 92,952,147                7,746,012                  7,746,012                  7,622,650                  
Taxes & Uncollectibles 1,437,599                  119,800                     110,940                     81,118                       
Emergency Reserve 5,000,000                  -                                 -                                 -                                 
Nonfuel Purchased Power:

* SJRPP D/S Principal 13,780,000                1,148,333                  1,148,333                  143,333                     
* SJRPP D/S Interest 11,127,870                927,323                     898,688                     903,151                     
** Other Non-Fuel Purchased Power 48,656,831                4,054,736                  4,179,491                  9,243,525                  

Total Nonfuel Expenses 972,216,258              54,165,902                55,978,206                -3.35% 59,466,637                5.87%

Non-Fuel Balance -                                 9,564,366                  5,063,591                  (510,766)                    

Total Balance -                                 9,564,366                  5,063,591                  (510,766)                    

Total Revenues 1,394,998,620           94,725,082                90,388,717                -4.58% 87,575,520                3.21%
Total Expenses 1,394,998,620           85,160,716                85,325,126                -0.19% 88,086,286                3.13%

KWH Sold - Territorial 13,180,028,000         966,247,811              910,893,960              -5.73% 889,447,835              2.41%
KWH Sold - Off System -                                 -                                 1,514,000                  1,962,000                  

13,180,028,000         966,247,811              912,407,960              -5.57% 891,409,835              2.36%

* Gross debt service
** Includes transmission capacity, SJRPP and Scherer R & R, O & M  and Investment Income.  

Prior Year Month



JEA Page 27
Electric System Year-to-Date
Budget vs. Actual ANNUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL Variance ACTUAL Variance
March 2019 and 2018 (unaudited) 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 % 2017-18 %
Fuel Related Revenues & Expenses

Fuel Rate Revenues 422,782,362$            192,523,696$            177,720,371$            -7.69% 184,060,628$            -3.44%

Fuel Expense and Purchased Power:
Fuel Expense - Energy System 327,822,632              150,486,952              142,388,164              150,419,247              
Fuel Expense - SJRPP 1,554,666                  1,554,666                  -                                30,347,851                
Other Purchased Power 108,921,904              53,150,571                65,266,006                52,111,053                
    Subtotal Energy Expense 438,299,202              205,192,189              207,654,170              -1.20% 232,878,151              10.83%

Transfer to (from) Rate Stabilization, Net (16,151,013)              (12,985,580)              (30,168,662)              (48,954,276)              
Fuel Related Uncollectibles 634,173                    317,087                    234,863                    136,753                    
Total 422,782,362              192,523,696              177,720,371              7.69% 184,060,628              3.44%

Fuel Balance -                                -                                -                                -                                

Nonfuel Related Revenues 
Base Rate Revenues 812,153,353              369,832,757              343,978,103              357,449,729              
Conservation Charge Revenue 1,000,000                  455,373                    243,199                    436,596                    
Environmental Charge Revenue 8,039,817                  3,661,116                  3,379,284                  3,503,282                  
Investment Income 11,600,594                5,800,297                  7,127,781                  4,792,581                  
Natural Gas Revenue Pass Through 2,464,374                  1,232,187                  364,769                    283,571                    
Other Revenues 136,958,120              122,826,475              121,703,026              12,835,761                
Total 972,216,258              503,808,205              476,796,162              -5.36% 379,301,520              25.70%

Nonfuel Related Expenses
Non-Fuel O&M 221,286,372              116,172,288              108,486,952              94,854,056                
DSM / Conservation O&M 8,126,797                  4,063,398                  2,377,352                  2,883,831                  
Environmental O&M 3,071,529                  1,767,750                  1,403,367                  248,420                    
Rate Stabilization - DSM (536,783)                   (268,391)                   727,340                    463,150                    
Rate Stabilization - Environmental 4,968,288                  2,032,503                  1,975,917                  3,254,862                  
Natural Gas Expense Pass Through 2,418,255                  1,209,127                  413,954                    341,413                    
Debt Principal - Energy System 116,230,000              58,115,000                58,115,000                62,376,429                
Debt Interest  - Energy System 87,438,843                43,719,421                42,640,833                44,904,802                
Bond Buy-Back - Energy System 108,694,829              108,694,829              108,694,829              -                                
R&R - Energy System 64,447,700                32,223,850                32,223,850                32,804,400                
Operating Capital Outlay 183,115,980              35,000,000                35,000,000                52,000,000                
City Contribution Expense 92,952,147                46,476,074                46,476,074                45,735,897                
Taxes & Uncollectibles 1,437,599                  718,799                    560,114                    373,448                    
Emergency Reserve 5,000,000                  -                                -                                -                                
Nonfuel Purchased Power:

* SJRPP D/S Principal 13,780,000                6,890,000                  6,890,000                  6,952,969                  
* SJRPP D/S Interest 11,127,870                5,563,935                  5,392,126                  6,363,703                  
** Other Non-Fuel Purchased Power 48,656,831                24,328,416                27,582,818                31,337,575                

Total Nonfuel Expenses 972,216,258              486,706,999              478,960,526              1.59% 384,894,954              -24.44%

Non-Fuel Balance -                                17,101,206                (2,164,364)                (5,593,434)                

Total Balance -                                17,101,206                (2,164,364)                (5,593,434)                

Total Revenues 1,394,998,620           696,331,901              654,516,533              -6.01% 563,362,148              16.18%
Total Expenses 1,394,998,620           679,230,695              656,680,897              3.32% 568,955,582              -15.42%

KWH Sold - Territorial 13,180,028,000         6,001,829,883           5,518,242,725           -8.06% 5,717,403,094           -3.48%
KWH Sold - Off System -                                -                                60,646,000                17,844,000                

13,180,028,000         6,001,829,883           5,578,888,725           -7.05% 5,735,247,094           -2.73%

* Gross debt service
** Includes transmission capacity, SJRPP and Scherer R & R, O & M  and Investment Income.  

Prior Year-to-Date



JEA Page 28
Water and Sewer System
Budget vs. Actual ANNUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL Variance ACTUAL Variance
March 2019 and 2018 (unaudited) 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 % 2017-18 %

REVENUES
Water & Sewer Revenues 457,315,688$            37,396,608$              36,726,813$              35,900,323$              
Capacity & Extension Fees 24,500,000                2,110,824                  2,343,615                  2,134,013                  
Investment Income 6,318,534                  526,544                    741,423                    797,771                    
Other Income 139,432,982              2,705,848                  3,111,342                  13,157,528                
Total 627,567,204              42,739,824                42,923,193                0.43% 51,989,635                -17.44%

EXPENSES
O & M Expenses 161,824,556              13,097,334                12,650,590                10,746,575                
Debt Principal - Water & Sewer 54,705,000                4,558,750                  4,558,750                  4,310,000                  
Debt Interest - Water & Sewer 65,430,545                5,452,545                  5,166,914                  5,672,944                  
Bond Buy-Back - Water & Sewer 99,188,560                -                                -                                -                                
Rate Stabilization - Environmental -                                -                                998,356                    670,719                    
R&R - Water & Sewer 23,552,350                1,962,696                  1,962,696                  2,039,483                  
Operating Capital Outlay 141,031,641              12,823,398                12,823,398                23,289,430                
Operating Capital Outlay - Capacity/Extension 24,500,000                2,041,666                  2,343,615                  2,134,013                  
Operating Capital Outlay - Contributions -                                -                                -                                -                                
Operating Capital Outlay - Environmental 15,431,798                1,283,056                  1,887                        612,922                    
City Contribution Expense 24,695,388                2,057,949                  2,057,949                  2,095,668                  
Uncollectibles & Fees 685,974                    57,164                      53,441                      49,900                      
Interlocal Agreements 15,521,392                -                                -                                -                                
Emergency Reserve 1,000,000                  -                                -                                -                                
Total  Expenses 627,567,204              43,334,558                42,617,596                1.65% 51,621,654                17.44%

Total Balance -$                          (594,734)$                 305,597$                   367,981$                   

Sales kgals
Water 42,000,000                3,388,163                  3,013,966                  -11.04% 3,190,819                  -5.54%
Sewer 34,650,000                2,832,357                  2,497,511                  -11.82% 2,511,302                  -0.55%
Total 76,650,000                6,220,520                  5,511,477                  -11.40% 5,702,121                  -3.34%

Prior Year to Date
Budget vs. Actual ANNUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL Variance ACTUAL Variance
March 2019 and 2018 (unaudited) 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 % 2017-18 %

REVENUES
Water & Sewer Revenues 457,315,688$            217,610,046$            209,512,353$            206,879,435$            
Capacity & Extension Fees 24,500,000                10,784,675                13,412,029                11,657,478                
Capital Contributions -                                -                                29,759                      14,879                      
Investment Income 6,318,534                  3,159,267                  4,205,561                  3,206,322                  
Other Income 139,432,982              115,837,426              118,483,751              18,740,106                
Total 627,567,204              347,391,414              345,643,453              -0.50% 240,498,220              43.72%

EXPENSES
O & M Expenses 161,824,556              79,885,394                75,737,244                69,132,286                
Debt Principal - Water & Sewer 54,705,000                27,352,500                27,352,500                25,860,000                
Debt Interest - Water & Sewer 65,430,545                32,715,273                31,575,968                33,000,951                
Bond Buy-Back  - Water & Sewer 99,188,560                99,188,560                99,188,560                -                                
Rate Stabilization - Environmental -                                -                                2,404,883                  5,029,521                  
R&R - Water & Sewer 23,552,350                11,776,175                11,776,175                12,236,900                
Operating Capital Outlay 141,031,641              57,569,361                50,332,584                66,352,440                
Operating Capital Outlay - Capacity/Extension 24,500,000                12,250,001                13,412,029                11,657,478                
Operating Capital Outlay - Contributions -                                -                                29,759                      14,879                      
Operating Capital Outlay - Environmental 15,431,798                7,698,335                  3,716,825                  2,005,238                  
City Contribution Expense 24,695,388                12,347,694                12,347,694                12,574,010                
Uncollectibles & Fees 685,974                    342,987                    233,712                    288,900                    
Interlocal Agreements 15,521,392                15,521,392                15,521,392                346,727                    
Emergency Reserve 1,000,000                  -                                -                                -                                
Total  Expenses 627,567,204              356,647,672              343,629,325              3.65% 238,499,330              -44.08%

Total Balance -$                          (9,256,258)$              2,014,128$                1,998,890$                

Sales kgals
Water 42,000,000                19,360,697                17,041,501                -11.98% 17,445,850                -2.32%
Sewer 34,650,000                16,245,300                14,444,274                -11.09% 14,365,233                0.55%
Total 76,650,000                35,605,997                31,485,775                -11.57% 31,811,083                -1.02%

-   

Prior Year MonthMonth

Year-To-Date 



JEA Page 29
District Energy System
Budget vs. Actual ANNUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL Variance ACTUAL Variance
March 2019 and 2018 (unaudited) 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 % 2017-18 %

REVENUES
Revenues 9,256,655$                613,925$                   588,986$                   602,780$                   
Investment Income -                                -                                12,993                      7,203                        
Total 9,256,655                  613,925                    601,979                    -1.95% 609,983                    -1.31%

EXPENSES
O & M Expenses 5,127,648                  350,569                    300,917                    349,354                    
Debt Principal - DES 1,690,000                  140,833                    140,833                    138,333                    
Debt Interest - DES 1,330,449                  110,871                    110,871                    113,257                    
R&R - DES 442,950                    36,913                      36,913                      36,404                      
Operating Capital Outlay 665,608                    -                                -                                -                                
Total  Expenses 9,256,655                  639,186                    589,534                    7.77% 637,348                    7.50%

Total Balance -$                          (25,261)$                   12,445$                    (27,365)$                   

Budget vs. Actual ANNUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL Variance ACTUAL Variance
March 2019 and 2018 (unaudited) 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 % 2017-18 %

REVENUES
Revenues 9,256,655$                4,278,531$                3,954,437$                4,075,160$                
Investment Income -                                -                                72,994                      39,010                      
Total 9,256,655                  4,278,531                  4,027,431                  -5.87% 4,114,170                  -2.11%

EXPENSES
O & M Expenses 5,127,648                  2,237,260                  2,058,470                  2,123,960                  
Debt Principal - DES 1,690,000                  845,000                    845,000                    830,000                    
Debt Interest - DES 1,330,449                  665,225                    665,224                    679,542                    
R&R - DES 442,950                    221,475                    221,475                    218,425                    
Operating Capital Outlay 665,608                    -                                -                                -                                
Total  Expenses 9,256,655                  3,968,960                  3,790,169                  4.50% 3,851,927                  1.60%

Total Balance -$                          309,571$                   237,262$                   262,243$                   

Prior Year MonthMonth

Prior-Year-to-DateYear-To-Date 



OPERATIONS UPDATE

BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS MEETING

as of March 31, 2019



Financial Update



Financial 
Metrics

FY2019 

Metrics:
Key Financial Energy System FY2018 FY2019 Forecast Target Result

Debt Service Coverage 2.4x 2.3x 2.8x ≥ 2.2x

Days Liquidity 317 315 279 150 to 250

Days Cash on Hand 219 152 112

Debt to Asset % 71% 68% 64% 61%

Water/Wastewater System FY2018 FY2019 Forecast Target Result

Debt Service Coverage 2.7x 2.7x 2.9x ≥ 1.8x

Days Liquidity 590 360 295

Days Cash on Hand 496 212 145 150 to 250

Debt to Asset % 52% 47% 44% 49%

1 Moody’s Aa benchmark: 150 to 250 days liquidity: per Moody’s Rating Methodology: “U.S. Public Power Electric Utilities with Generation Ownership Exposure, Nov. 2017”
2 Long-term target is 60.9%: per Moody’s Sector In-Depth Report Public Power Medians: “Stability Continues Amid Low Energy Prices, Clean Energy Shift, Sep. 2018”
3 Long-term target is 49%: calculated peer group per “Moody’s 214 Aa rated public water-sewer utilities, Dec. 2016”
4 Moody’s Aa benchmark: 150 to 250 days cash: per Moody’s Rating Methodology: “U.S. Municipal Utility Revenue Debt, Oct. 2017”

Year-to-Date FY2019 Full Year

Year-to-Date FY2019 Full Year

Our key financial metrics are being 

impacted by the implementation of 

the Strategic & Timely Asset 

Realignment (STAR) Plan

► The STAR Plan is being implemented in 

two phases

► Phase One is complete

o $195 million was defeased in 

February

o $100 million for Energy

o $95 million for Water/Wastewater

► Phase Two is set to be completed in 

August of 2019

► Despite what the decrease in our days 

liquidity and days cash metrics might 

indicate, the STAR plan will actually 

increase cash flow by an average of 

~$80 million annually through 2023

1

2

3

4

3



($ in millions)
Principal

Sep 2018

Principal

Mar 2019
Change

Mar 2019

Weighted Average 

Interest Rates

Energy System (ES)

Fixed rate bonds $1,455 $1,233 $(222) 4.00%

Hedged variable rate bonds 407 406 (1)    4.42%

Unhedged variable rate bonds 187 185 (2) 2.34%

Revolving credit agreement -- -- -- --

Total $2,049 $1,824 $(225) 3.93%

Bulk Power Supply System (BPSS)

Fixed rate bonds $101 $95 (6) 3.78%

Total $101 $95 (6) 3.78%

SJRPP

Fixed rate bonds $281 $279 $(2) 3.91%

Revolving credit agreement -- -- -- --

Total $281 $279 $(2) 3.91%

Combined ES, BPSS and SJRPP $2,431 $2,198 $(233) 3.92%

Water/Wastewater System

Fixed rate bonds $1,254 $1,116 $(138) 3.99%

Hedged variable rate bonds 116 110 (6) 4.28%

Unhedged variable rate bonds 159 157 (2)    2.06%

Revolving credit agreement 3 5 2 3.64%

Total $1,532 $1,388 $(144) 3.80%

District Energy System

Fixed rate bonds $36 $35 $(1)    4.19%

Total $36 $35 $(1) 4.19%

Total JEA Debt $3,999 $3,621 $(378) 3.88%

Financial 
Metrics

FY2019 

Outstanding:
Combined Debt

Energy System (ES, BPSS, SJRPP):

► Debt outstanding: $2,198  

• $133 decrease due to October 

1st principal payments

• $100 decrease due to Feb 2019 

defeasance

► Total variable rate debt: $591

Water/Wastewater System:

► Debt outstanding: $1,388

• $49 decrease due to October 1st 

principal payments

• $95 decrease due to Feb 2019 

defeasance

► Total variable rate debt: $272 

Interest Rates:

► Interest rates are net of BABs subsidy, 

original issue premiums / discounts  and 

includes  variable debt liquidity / 

remarketing fees and interest rate 

swap payments

4



5

Financial 
Metrics

*Weighted Average Interest Rates

FY2019 

Outstanding*:
Combined Debt

► Fiscal year end interest rates are net of 

BABs subsidy, original issue premiums / 

discounts and includes variable debt 

liquidity / remarketing fees and interest 

rate swap payments

► – – – During FY2010 – FY2013 DES was 

funded with variable rate debt at an 

average of 1 percent

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

4.0%

4.5%

5.0%

FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019

Combined Energy, Scherer & SJRPP Water/Wastewater District Energy Combined - All Systems

Budget

4.02%

3.88%



6

Variable debt as a percentage 

of total debt:
► Unhedged variable at 8% for Energy 

and 12% for Water/Wastewater

► Hedged variable at 18% for Energy and 

8% for Water/Wastewater

Other Items Of Interest:

► Liquidity facilities / direct purchase 

bonds are with highly rated providers

► Wells Fargo renewed in Dec 2018

► Next liquidity renewal in May 2020

► Variable rate reserve to mitigate risk of 

higher rates – $44 million

Total variable rate debt of $863MM 

with $516MM swapped to fixed rate

FY2019 

Risk Analysis:
Variable Debt

Financial 
Metrics

Water and Wastewater

Variable Interest Rates (including fees)

Energy System

Variable Interest Rates (including fees)

Liquidity Facilities and Direct Purchase Bonds (DPBs)

Bank Moody’s/S&P/Fitch $ (in millions) %

Wells Fargo Bank N.A. (100% DPBs) Aa2/A+/AA- $215 26

JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. Aa2/A+/AA 199 24

Royal Bank of Canada A2/AA-/AA 193 23

US Bank, N.A. A1/AA-/AA- 144 17

Sumitomo A1/A/A 52 6

State Street Bank Aa3/AA-/AA 31 4

Total Variable Rate Debt $834

Swap Providers

Bank Moody’s/S&P/Fitch $ (in millions) %

Morgan Stanley Capital Services A3/BBB+/A $171 33

Goldman Sachs Mitsui Marine Derivative Products Aa2/AA-/NR 136 26

JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. Aa2/A+/AA 124 24

Merrill Lynch A3/A-/A+ 85 17

Total Swapped to Fixed Rate $516

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

Actual Variable Rate Projected Variable Rate--Low

Projected Variable Rate--Mid Projected Variable Rate--High

Fixed Rate Market

Budget

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

6%

Actual Variable Rate Projected Variable Rate-Low

Projected Variable Rate-Mid Projected Variable Rate-High

Budget

Fixed Rate Market



Debt & Debt To Asset Ratios

7

Energy System Water/Wastewater System

Financial 
Metrics

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

Total Debt

Debt to Asset Ratio

Peer ratio (61%)

Fiscal Year Ended

2

1

Peak: $4.3B

$2.2B

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

Total Debt

Debt to Asset Ratio

Peer ratio (49%)

Fiscal Year Ended

Peak: $2.1B

$1.4B

1 Includes JEA, Scherer and  SJRPP
2 Per Moody’s Sector In-Depth Report “Public Power Medians: Stability Continues Amid Low Energy Prices, Clean Energy Shift”, Sept. 2018
3 As calculated from Moody’s Municipal Financial Ratio Analysis database of 209 Aa rated public water-sewer utilities, Jan. 10, 2017

3

B
ill

io
n

s

B
ill

io
n

s



Treasury Yield Curve and Investment Portfolio Return

8

2.39% 2.43%
2.26% 2.23%

2.41%

2.82%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

3 mth 6 mth 2 yr 5 yr 10 yr 30 yr

Maturity

Prior Year

Prior Month

Current

U. S. Treasury Yield Curve Investment Portfolio Return

Financial 
Metrics

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

Fiscal Year

Current:
Weighted Avg. Life- 2.0 Years

Rolling 12 Month Average- 2.38%



Energy System Update



Energy System FY18 Actual FY19 Budget FY19 Forecast FY19 vs FY18 ($) FY19 vs FY18 (%)

Revenues

Fuel Revenue $398,293 $402,650 $390,937 ($7,356) (1.8%)

Base Revenue 772,155 782,136 761,769 ($10,386) (1.3%)

Other Revenue 37,174 42,328 41,665 $4,490 12.1%

Total Revenues $1,207,623 $1,227,114 $1,194,371 ($13,251) (1.1%)

Select Expenses

Fuel Expense $455,633 $418,167 $416,715 ($38,918) (8.5%)

Fuel Fund Transfers (57,339) (15,517) (25,777) $31,562

O & M Expense 207,551 233,767 232,293 $24,741 11.9%

Non-fuel Purchased Power 140,575 73,565 94,213 ($46,362) (33.0%)

Net Revenues $449,544 $507,272 $464,758 $15,213 3.4%

Capital Expenditures $174,320 $334,588 $301,206 $126,886 72.8%

Debt Service $196,288 $190,618 $181,095 ($15,193) (7.7%)

10

FY2019 

Financial Results
Energy System

Energy System 
Update

Beginning 

Balance

Forecasted 

Surplus/(Deficit)

Forecasted Ending 

Balance

Forecasted Percent of Annual Fuel 

Expense

Fuel Fund $74.4 ($25.8) $48.6 9.7%

($33)

($43)

Forecasted Cost Metrics:

Debt Coverage: 2.8x

Days Liquidity: 279 days

Days Cash on Hand: 112 days

Debt to Asset Ratio: 64%

Total Debt: $2.14B 

1 Council approved limit for capital expenditures in FY19 is $335 million
2 Includes $57 million for Brandy Branch upgrades and $8 million for Solar Land purchase

3 Includes $18 million contribution to Rate Stabilization – Non-fuel Purchased Power for Plant Vogtle

1

3

2



 11,000

 11,500

 12,000

 12,500

 13,000

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

11

FY2019 

MWh Sales
Energy System

Energy System 
Update

Unit Sales Drivers:
► FY2019 MWh decrease due to warmer 

weather, evidenced by a 9% decrease 

in Degree Days

YTD Customer Accounts

FY19 FY18 %

473,341 464,289 1.95%

MWh Sales (in thousands)

Month FY19 FY18 %

Oct 1,018,615 1,065,925 (4.4%)

Nov 898,455 833,994 7.7%

Dec 939,381 989,619 (5.1%)

Jan 992,410 1,205,005 (17.6%)

Feb 758,488 733,718 3.4%

Mar 910,894 889,143 2.4%

YTD 5,518,243 5,717,404 (3.5%)

Apr 855,216

May 1,050,255

Jun 1,124,820

Jul 1,170,996

Aug 1,249,276

Sep 1,196,374

Forecast/Total 12,165,179 12,364,341

YTD Degree Days

30-yr. Avg. FY19 FY18

1,651 1,517 1,658

Total System (3.5%)

Residential (4.3%)

Comm./ Industrial (2.2%)

Interruptible 1.6%

Wholesale (FPU) (100%)



Energy System FY2018 FY2019 Goal FY2019 YTD Status

JEA Safety RIR 1.48 1.40 1.25

Sales Forecast  (million MWh) 12.4 12.4 12.2

T&D Grid Performance Customer Outage 

Frequency (outages/year) 1.4 1.8 1.15

Electric Outage Duration (minutes/year) 67 80 52.9

Transmission Line Faults (# per 100 miles) 2.2 2.5 1.8

CEMI5  (% cust. > 5 outages/year) 0.4 0.8 0.14

Generating Plant Performance

Generation Fleet Reliability (forced outages rate) 2.1 2.0 4.51

Environmental Compliance (permit exceedances) 2 4 0

Energy System 
Update

March 2019 

or Concerns This Month:
Significant Occurrences 

► The JEA Fleet Forced Outage Rate is 

higher than target through Q2 due 

to extended unit recovery on NS Unit 

2 as a result of excess ash build up 

► CEMI-5 continues to be well below 

target in Q2, with only 521 customers 

experiencing more than 5 outages in 

the last 12 months

► ETR, Frequency, and Duration all 

performing better than goal

Energy Monthly Operations Scorecard

12



13

Electric Service Reliability
► Outage frequency and duration have 

been reduced significantly over the last 

9 years; running flat over last several 

years

► The typical JEA customer sees 1.2 

outages per year and a total outage 

duration of about 53 minutes

Transmission Line Reliability
► Overall downward trend over the last 

eight years

► FY19 (1.8) is better than target

CEMI-5
► Improvement trend over past three 

years for CEMI5. 521 (0.14%) of our 

customers have experienced more 

than 5 outages in the past 12 months

JEA continues to show favorable 

trends over time across all other 

operational metrics
T&D Grid Performance Metric FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 Target FY2019 YTD

Customer Outage Frequency # of Outages per Year 1.55 1.39 1.6 1.15

Electric Outage Duration # of Minutes out per Year 99.5 66.9 75 52.9

Transmission Line Faults # of Faults per 100 miles 1.9 2.2 2.5 1.8

CEMI5 %  Customers  > 5 outages per yr 1.07% 0.4% 0.8% 0.14%

FY2019 

Reliability Metrics:
Energy System

Electric Service Reliability: Outage Frequency Electric Service Reliability: Outage Duration

Transmission Line Reliability: Fault Frequency

Energy System 
Update

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

O
U

TA
G

E
S
 /

 Y
E
A

R

TARGET

1.6

YTD

1.2

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

120.0

140.0

160.0

O
U

TA
G

E
S
 /

 Y
E
A

R

TARGET

75

YTD

52.9

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

FA
U

LT
 F

R
E
Q

U
E
N

C
Y

 IN
D

E
X

TARGET

2.5

YTD

1.8
0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

CEMI5 Target

TARGET

0.8%

YTD

0.14%

CEMI-5



14

Generating Plant Performance Metric FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 Target FY2019 YTD

Generation Fleet Reliability Forced Outages Rate 2.17 2.1 2.0 4.51

Environmental Compliance Permit Exceedances 6 2 4 1

FY2019 

Reliability Metrics:
Energy System

Environmental Compliance
► We have experienced 1 reportable 

event thus far during FY2019

► JEA remains actively engaged in and 

preparing for all new and emerging 

environmental regulations

Generating Fleet Reliability
► The JEA Fleet Forced Outage Rate is 

higher than target through Q2 due to 

extended unit recovery on NS Unit 2 as 

a result of excess ash build up

Environmental Compliance: Reportable Events

JEA Fleet Reliability: Forced Outage Rate

Energy System 
Update

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

N
U

M
B

E
R

 O
F
 E

V
E
N

TS

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

E
F
O

R

TARGET

4

YTD

1

Unit EFOR
BBCC 0.9%
CFBs 11.8%
NS3 1.4%

TARGET

2.0

YTD

4.51



15

$0

$50

$100

$150

Utility Charges Gross Receipts Tax Public Service Tax Franchise Fee

Florida Utilities Monthly Residential Electric Bill Comparison
(Consumption @ 1,000 kWh)

Residential Rates as of March 2019



Water/Wastewater System Update



Water Wastewater System FY18 Actual FY19 Budget FY19 Forecast FY19 vs FY18 ($) FY19 vs FY18 (%)

Revenues

Water & Sewer Revenues $421,937 $444,081 $425,082 $3,145 0.7%

Other Revenue 70,902 71,063 $77,109 $6,207 8.8%

Total Revenues $492,839 $515,144 $502,191 $9,352 1.9%

Select Expenses

O&M Expense $147,334 $161,825 $159,431 $12,097 8.2%

Net Revenues $362,470 $352,654 $342,010 ($20,459) (5.6%)

Capital Expenditures $199,314 $248,461 $224,996 $25,682 12.9%

Debt Service $112,791 $115,964 $109,904 ($2,887) (2.6%)
1 Council approved limit for capital expenditures in FY19 is $248 million

17

FY2019 
Financial Results & Cost 

Metrics

Water/Wastewater System

Forecasted Cost Metrics:

Debt Coverage: 2.9x

Days Liquidity: 295 days

Days Cash on Hand: 145 days

Debt to Asset Ratio: 44%

Total Debt: $1.34B 

Water/Wastewater 
System Update

($13)

($11)

1



18

FY2019 

System kgal Sales:
Water/Wastewater 

Unit Sales Drivers:
► FY19 rain days up 14 days

► Reclaimed accounts for FY19 up 

24.4% versus FY18

Water/Wastewater 
System Update

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

 30,000

 35,000

 40,000

 45,000

FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

YTD Rainfall

30-Yr. Avg. FY19 FY18

Inches 19.3 21.1 16.5

Days 46.5 57.0 43.0

Month FY19 FY18 %

Oct 3,212 2,992 7.4%

Nov 2,862 3,037 (5.8%)

Dec 2,792 2,883 (3.2%)

Jan 2,724 2,790 (2.4%)

Feb 2,436 2,553 (4.6%)

Mar 3,014 3,191 (5.5%)

YTD 17,040 17,446 (2.3%)

Apr 3,006

May 3,270

Jun 3,001

Jul 3,133

Aug 3,157

Sep 3,174

Forecast/Total 35,351      36,187

kGal Sales (in thousands)

Water Wastewater Reclaimed

YTD Customer Accounts

FY19 FY18 %

Water 353,640 346,166 2.2%

Sewer 276,017 269,074 2.6%

Reclaimed 13,558 10,903 24.4%

Total System (2.3%)

Residential (0.9%)

Comm./ Industrial (1.3%)

Irrigation (10.0%)



UP

Water/Wastewater System FY2018 FY2019 Goal FY2019 YTD Status

JEA Safety RIR 2.0 1.40 1.25

Water Sales Forecast (kgal in 1000’s) 36,187 37,615 35,351

Water Unplanned Outages (# cust.) 4.79% 2% 0.55%

CUP Compliance Yes Yes Yes

Nitrogen to the River (tons) 550 616 231

Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO’s per 100 miles of pipe) 0.63 0.58 0.41

March 2019 

or Concerns This Month:
Significant Occurrences 

► Zero (0) OSHA recordable safety 
incidents for JEA in the month of 
March

► Unplanned Water Main Outages: 390 

customers experienced an outage in 

the month of March

► CUP:  Average daily flow of 105 MGD 
was 24% below CY limit of 138 MGD; 
reclaimed usage at 15 MGD

► Nitrogen to River: 231 tons YTD;  JEA 
has a limit of 683 tons per year and 
provides the COJ with 37 tons

► SSO’s Impacting Waters of the US:  21 
YTD, root cause analysis is performed 
on each SSO - exploring other options 
for inspections of system 

Water/Wastewater Monthly Operations Scorecard

19

Water/Wastewater 
System Update



1.79%

1.17%
1.46%

1.73%

3.85%

1.43%

4.79%

0.55%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

A
ve

ra
ge

 M
in

u
te

s 
p

e
r 

M
o

n
th

88

74 70 69
67 69 67 68

76

66

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

M
in

u
te

s

20

Unplanned Water Outages
► Percentage of customers affected by 

unplanned outages 

Water Pressure 

(minutes per month < 30 psi)
► Measured by 137 pressure monitoring 

stations in the distribution system.  

Pressure must be greater than 30 psi, 

and is expected to be greater than 50 

psi

Customer Response Time
► Average time from a customer call to 

the ticket completion or transfer to a 

field crew for a more extensive repair 

outage in the past 12 months

FY2019 

Customer Reliability:
Water/Wastewater System

Water Distribution System

Average Minutes Water Pressure Less than 30 psi 

Priority Tickets: Customer Response Time

Customers Affected by Unplanned Outages 

(% of customers)

Water/Wastewater 
System Update

YTD 
Tickets
7,294



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

2
0

04

2
0

06

2
0

08

2
0

10

2
0

12

2
0

14

2
0

16

2
0

18

2
0

20

2
0

22

2
0

24

2
0

26

2
0

28

2
0

30

2
0

32

2
0

34

Fl
o

w
 (

M
G

D
)

Actual Projected

44 MGD

32 MGD

37 MGD50.35

3.13
6.02

9.43

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
B

ill
io

n
 G

al
lo

n
s

YTD Allocation of CUP Actual

CY2019 CUP Limit

21

YTD CUP Allocation
► The YTD CUP allocation is determined 

by using the last five years' monthly 

amounts to create JEA's monthly target

► March 2019 = 9.43

Condition 18
► YTD average daily flow is 24% below CY 

limit of 138 MGD

FY2019 

Consumptive Use Permit:
Water System

CUP Conditions 43 and 44: Reclaimed Water Use2019 Consumptive Use Permit (CUP)

20 MGD

Reclaimed 

Reduction of 

2MGD used 

at SJRPP

CUP Condition 44: South Grid Wellfield Allocation Limits

Compliance Metric – CY Basis 2016 2017 2018 2019 Target CY2019

Water CUP Limits (MGD) 112 (131 limit) 114 (133 limit) 112 (135 limit) 138 limit 105

South Grid Wellfield Allocation (MGD) 52.95 (<50.23 limit) 48.62 (<50.23 limit) 46.35 (<50.23 limit) < 50.23 limit 41.93

Reclaim Usage (MGD) 16 20 17 19 15.30

MGD – Million Gallons Per Day 

St. Johns River Water Management District CUP 

Water/Wastewater 
System Update

The YTD CUP allocation is 
determined by using the last 
five years' monthly amounts 

to create JEA's monthly target.
March 19 = 9.43  

Permit Limit

Post YTD

Critical Wellfields 2014 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Deerwood III 7.00 7.01 6.67 7.88 7.64 7.17 4.33

Ridenour 6.85 6.39 6.66 7.64 6.68 6.54 5.51

Oakridge 5.65 6.23 4.99 5.79 5.49 5.55 4.23

Greenland 4.53 1.53 4.27 4.16 3.99 4.18 4.03

Brierwood 3.02 4.53 2.84 3.36 2.98 2.43 1.9

Subtotal 27.05 25.69 25.43 28.83 26.78 25.87 20

Other Wellfieds 23.18 20.92 22.07 24.12 21.85 20.48 19.35

Total South Grid 50.23 46.61 47.5 52.95 48.63 46.35 39.35

Total System ADF MGD 138 104 107 112 114 112 101

Actuals



0.62 0.60

0.74

0.56
0.66

1.16

0.68

0.41

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

22

Sanitary Sewer Overflows 

(SSOs to US Waters)
► FY04 – FY07: 54 per year average 

► FY08 – FY18: 33 per year average  

► Twenty-One (21) SSO’s impacting US 

Waters during FY19 

Nitrogen Discharge to 

St. Johns River 
► Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) is 

683 tons (rolling 12 month total)  

► FY19 projection is 483 tons

FY2019 

Environmental Compliance:
Wastewater System

SSO Volume Impacting Waters of the US by Fiscal Year* 

(in 1,000 Gallons)
SSOs Impacting Waters of the US (per 100 miles of pipe)

Compliance Metric – CY Basis 2017 2018 2019 Target CY2019

Sewer Nitrogen (N) Tons – FY basis 527 (TMDL of 683*) 550 (TMDL of 683*) 616 231

Sewer SSOs – US Waters (per 100 miles of pipe) 1.15 0.68 0.58 0.41

286

949

364
54 69 60 59 63 212

1,024

7,475

890

38
 -

 1,000

 2,000

 3,000

 4,000

 5,000

 6,000

 7,000

 8,000

FY7 FY9 FY11 FY13 FY15 FY17 FY19

Lenox Ave Manhole
Foreign Debris 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

FY07 FY09 FY11 FY13 FY15 FY17 FY19

To
ta

l N
it

ro
ge

n
 (

to
n

s/
ye

ar
)

TMDL Permit Limit
1536 tons/year

FY2019 Projection 
483

*Aligned with the PSC Rule for Electric Reliability Reporting, the Operational Metrics will exclude the impact 

of all service interruptions associated with a storm named by the National Hurricane Center. 

Total Nitrogen Discharge to St. Johns River

Water/Wastewater 
System Update



23

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

Utility Charges Public Service Tax Franchise Fee

$
 /

 M
o

n
th

Water & Sewer Rates in Florida
Residential Service with a 5/8" meter and 6 kgals of Consumption

Residential Rates as of March 2019

23



Supplemental Financial Information

Supplemental 

Financial 

Information

Safety Update



25

Units FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 Target FY2019 YTD

Recordable Incident Rate (RIR) 2.10 1.48 1.40 1.25

FY2019 

Safety Performance:
Consolidated

Safety 
Update

FY2018
► RIR = 1.48

► # of Recordables = 31

FY2019
► March Recordables = 0

► March Lost Time Incidents = 0

► Continuing to “Plan for Zero”   

► Maintain focus on:

o Complacency

o Hand/Finger

o 0-5 Year Employees

o PPE Use

o Strains, Sprains, Slip/Trip/Fall

o Repeat Occurrences 

o Job Briefings

o Training

► Industry Benchmark* RIR – 5.0

► APPA – 3rd Place, Group H CY 2018

Safety Recordable Incident Rate (RIR)

0.80

1.63

2.05

1.51 1.48

1.84

2.38

1.65
1.82

2.10

1.48

2.…

1.59 1.49

1.44

1.48

1.25

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

R
IR

FY17 FY18 FY19 1.4 Target



Customer Experience Update



Customer Experience FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 Status

JDP Customer Satisfaction Index - Residential 2nd Q 1st Q 2nd Q 1st Q

JDP Customer Satisfaction Index - Business 1st Q 1st Q 1st Q 3rd Q

Overall First Contact Resolution Index 79.4% 79.4% 78.9% 80.5%

Self Service Utilization 76.0% 79.6% 82.0% 83.6%

Net Write-Offs 0.14% 0.15% 0.13% 0.14%

Customer 
Experience Update

Customer Experience Monthly Operations Scorecard

27



Customer Service

Power Quality & Reliability

Billing & Payment

Communication 

Corporate Citizenship

Price

FY19 Customer Satisfaction Goal

Achieve 1st Quartile Ranking for JD Power 

Customer Satisfaction Index for both 

Residential and Business Studies

Residential (R)

Business (B)                                    

Be Easy to Do Business With

Empower Customers to Make Informed Decisions

Demonstrate Community Responsibility

Achieve 1st Quartile Ranking on All Drivers

FY17 FY18 Per 1 Per 2 Per 3 Per 4 YTD 19

1Q 747 2Q 737 2Q 750 1Q 765 1Q 754 1Q 756

FY18 Per 1 Per 2 Per 3 Per 4 YTD 19

1Q 696 2Q 695 1Q 728 1Q 707 1Q 710

1Q 796 3Q 728 3Q 728

FY18 Per 1 Per 2 Per 3 Per 4 YTD 19

2Q 684 2Q 682 2Q 697 1Q 698 2Q 692

1Q 765 3Q 721 3Q 721

FY18 Per 1 Per 2 Per 3 Per 4 YTD 19

2Q 794 2Q 811 1Q 823 2Q 798 1Q 811

1Q 844 3Q 803 3Q 803

FY18 Per 1 Per 2 Per 3 Per 4 YTD 19

2Q 781 2Q 792 1Q 819 2Q 798 1Q 803

1Q 823 3Q 795 3Q 795

FY18 Per 1 Per 2 Per 3 Per 4 YTD 19

2Q 788 1Q 849 1Q 818 2Q 824 1Q 830

1Q 843 2Q 811 2Q 811

FY18 Per 1 Per 2 Per 3 Per 4 YTD 19

2Q 675 1Q 706 1Q 702 1Q 707 1Q 705

1Q 760 2Q 722 2Q 722

R
B

R
B

R
B

R
B

R
B

R
B

FY19 Residential # of companies ranked: 142
FY19 Business # of companies ranked:  88

1Q= 1st quartile     2Q= 2nd quartile     3Q = 3rd quartile   4Q = 4th quartile

Residential Business

FY17 FY18 Per 1 Per 2 YTD 19
1Q 779 1Q 802 3Q 760 3Q 760

Customer 
Experience

28



647

705
692

754

703

780

747

791

737

784

756

Residential Business

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

JEA
Rank
Florida

JEA
Quartile
Industry

JEA
Rank
Industry

75/138 30/140 14/87

5/11 2/6

1113

7/11

12/86

5/11

2

37/137

6/11

1

1/86

1/6

1

3/6

1

21/138

* 2019 Residential W3 YTD

1

13/86

2/56/11

44/138

2

14/88

2/5

1

29/142

4/12

Customer Satisfaction Index Scores

*

29



Customer Satisfaction Index Score

Residential 2019 WV1 & WV2
Business 2018 W2 (FY19)

832

785

780

765

760

757

Gulf Power

Florida Power & Light

Florida Utility Avg.

Duke Energy-Florida

JEA

Tampa Electric

1
1

0
*

3
6

4
4

5
0

805

777

762

756

756

748

751

740

732

717

716

716

715

SECO Energy

Clay Electric Cooperative

Florida Power & Light

JEA

OUC

Florida Utility Avg.

Gulf Power

Withlacoochee River Electric

Cooperative

City of Tallahassee

Tampa Electric

Lee County Electric Cooperative

Lakeland Electric

Duke Energy Florida

2
1

2
2

4
2

9
2

9
*

3
3

4
7

6
3

9
3

9
5

9
5

9
8

Florida Utilities

30



JEA Community Engagement Calendar - March - June 2019

1
2
3

4

5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25

A B C D E

Date Event/Activity Location Time Type

Mar-19
3/1/2019 City of Jax Beach WWTP Mandarin Plant 9am Ambassador Facility Tour

3/1/2019
Buckman Bridge Unitarian 

Church
8447 Manresa Ave. 7pmn Ambassador Speaker

2/28 - 3/3/2019 
2019 Spring Home & Patio 

Show
Prime Osborn 10am - 9pm Ambassador Event

3/2/2019 Eden Gardens 9179 Gardens St. 8am Volunteer Activity
3/2/2019 Jax Science Fest Seawalk Pavilion 10am - 2pm Ambassador Event
3/2/2019 FCNMHP Pet Food Bank Cassat Ave. 9am - 12 pm 
3/4/2019 JEA Power Pals Rufus Payne Elem. 1:45pm Ambassador Instructor

3/4/2019
IEEE IAS Electrical Safety 

Group
NGS Tour 8am Ambassador Facility Tour

3/4/2019 Twin Lakes Middle Main St Lab 10:30am Ambassador Facility Tour
3/6/2019 JEA Power Pals North Shore Elem. 10am Ambassador Instructor
3/7/2019 JEA Power Pals St Clair Evans Elem. 10am Ambassador Instructor
3/7/2019 St Johns Tech High Mandarin Plant Tour 10am Ambassador facility Tour

3/7 - 3/8/2019 GATE River Run Expo Jax. Fairgrounds Multiple Shifts Volunteer Activity
3/8/2019 Barkin' Biscuits Berry Good Farms 9am Volunteer Activity

3/9/2019 JEA Water Station GATE Run 2 mi. mark Riverplace Blvd. 6am Volunteer Activity

3/11/2019 Callahan Food Distribution Nassau County Extension Ofc. 12:30pm Volunteer Activity
3/11/2019 JEA Power Pals Rufus Payne Elem. 1:45pm Ambassador Instructor
3/11/2019 USO No Dough Dinner Mayport Blvd. 10am Volunteer Activity
3/13/2019 Catholic Charities 134 E. Church St. 9:30am Volunteer Activity
3/13/2019 JEA Power Pals North Shore Elem. 10am Ambassador Instructor

3/14/2019
Brentowood Neighborhood 

Job Fair
3465 Village Center Dr. 10am Ambassador Event

3/15/2019 Catty Shack 1860 Starratt Rd. 10am Volunteer Activity
3/15/2019 Girls Inc. Career fair 900 Scorn St 12pm Ambassador Event



JEA Community Engagement Calendar - March - June 2019

26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

37
38
39
40
41

42
43
44
45

46
47
48
49

50
51

A B C D E

Date Event/Activity Location Time Type

3/15 - 3/16/2019 St. Johns River Cleanup Northside & Northwest JAX 9am Volunteer Activity
3/18/2019 JEA Power Pals Rufus Payne Elem. 1:45pm Ambassador Instructor
3/19/2019 Moosehaven Lodge 1701 Park St 11am Ambassador Speaker
3/20/2019 JEA Power Pals North Shore Elem. 10am Ambassador Instructor
3/20/2019 Mayport Middle Career fair 2900 Mayport Rd. 10am Ambassador Event
3/21/2019 Eden Gardens 9179 Gardens St. 8am Volunteer Activity
3/21/2019 Farm Share 1502 Jessie St. 9am Volunteer Activity
3/21/2019 Sandalwood High Career Fair 4049 Woodcock Rd 9am Ambassador Event
3/22/2019 Fish-A-Thon Hanna Park 8am Volunteer Activity
3/22/2019 Feeding NE FL Food Bank Edgewood Ave. 8:30am Volunteer Activity

3/22/2019
Tulsa Welding and Victory 

Christian Academy
Old Plank Solar Farm Tour 9:30am Ambassador Facility Tour

3/25/2019 Callahan Food Distribution Nassau County Extension Ofc. 12:30pm Volunteer Activity
3/25/2019 USO No Dough Dinner Mayport Blvd. 10am Volunteer Activity
3/27/2019 Girl Scout Troop Oakleaf Elem. 3:30pm Ambassador Speaker
3/28/2019 Cathedral Terrace Café Newnan St. 11am Volunteer Activity

3/29/2019 Abess Park Elem. Career Day 12731 Abess Blvd. 9am Ambassador Speaker

3/29/2019 UNF Engineering Class Ridenour Plant 10am Ambassador facility Tour
3/29/2019 HabiJax Builds Hubbard St. 7:30am Volunteer Activity
3/29/2019 Disco Spring Fling for Seniors Morocco Shrine 9am Volunteer Activity

3/30/2019
Northside Church of God 

Resource Fair
4736 Avenue B 10am Ambassador Event

Apr-19
4/3/2019 Health & Wellness Fair John E Ford Elem. 6pm Ambassador Event
4/4/2019 Westside High Career Fair 5530 Firestone Rd. 10am Ambassador Event

4/5 - 4/6/2019
Arbor Day Festival & 

Greenscape Tree Giveaway
Jessie Ball DuPont Park under the 

Treaty Oak
9am Volunteer Activity



JEA Community Engagement Calendar - March - June 2019

52

53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65

66
67
68
69
70
71
72

73
74
75
76
77
78
79

A B C D E

Date Event/Activity Location Time Type

4/5/2019
Neptune Bch Elem Career 

Day
1515 Florida Ave. 8:30am Ambassador Event

4/5/2019 UNF Engineering Class Buckman Plant Tour 9am Ambassador Facility Tour
4/5/2019 JEB Stuart Career Fair 4415 Wesconnet Ave. 9am Ambassador Event
4/5/2019 Elected Officilas Blair Rd. Solar Farm 8am Ambassador Facility Tour
4/6/2019 Eden Gardens 9179 Gardens St. 8:30am Volunteer Activity
4/8/2019 Callahan Food Distribution Nassau County Extension Ofc. 12:30pm Volunteer Activity

4/9 - 4/10/2019 USO Food Pantry 2560 Mayport Rd. 9am Volunteer Activity
4/10/2019 Catholic Charities 2110 Blue Ave., 32209 9:30am Volunteer Activity
4/10/2019 HR Team Project Jacksonville Zoo & Gardens 8:30am Volunteer Activity
4/11/2019 BEAM Food Bank 6th Ave. 1:00pm Volunteer Activity
4/12/2019 Senior Walk for Wellness TIAA Field 8am Volunteer Activity
4/12/2019 Catty Shack Team Activity Starratt Rd. 10am Volunteer Activity
4/12/2019 UNF Engineering Class Buckman Plant 10am Ambassador facility Tour

4/12/2019
John E Ford Elem. 

Transportation Career Fair
1531 Winthrope St 8:30am Ambassador Event

4/13/2019 FCNMHP Pet Food Bank Cassat Ave. 9am Volunteer Activity
4/13/2019 Int'l Migratory Bird Day Ft. Caroline National Park 9am Volunteer Activity
4/15/2019 Wolfons High Mandarin Plant Tour 8am Ambassador Facility Tour
4/17/2019 DLC N&L Easter Egg Hunt Edgewood Ave. 9:30am Volunteer Activity
4/17/2019 Arlington Middle Career Fair 8141 Lone Star Rd. 9am Ambassador Event
4/18/2019 Farm Share 1502 Jessie St. 9am Volunteer Activity

4/19/2019
 FSCJ Environmental 

Workforce Group
Main St Lab 10:30am Ambassador facility Tour

4/22/2019 Sodexco Earth Fair 601 Riverside Ave. 11am Ambassador Speaker
4/22/2019 USO No Dough Dinner 2560 Mayport Rd. 10am Volunteer Activity
4/22/2019 Callahan Food Distribution Nassau County Extension Ofc. 12:30pm Volunteer Activity

4/22 - 4/25/2019 PACE Center for Girls University Blvd. 9am Volunteer Activity
4/23/2019 USO Food Pantry 2560 Mayport Rd. 9am Volunteer Activity
4/24/2019 Biscayne Elem. Career Fair 12230 Biscayne Blvd. 8:30am Ambassador Event



JEA Community Engagement Calendar - March - June 2019

80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88

89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

97
98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105

A B C D E

Date Event/Activity Location Time Type

4/24 - 4/25/2019 Eden Gardens 9179 Gardens St. 8:30am Volunteer Activity
4/25/2019 Annual Pastors Lunch Main St Library 11am Ambassador Event
4/25/2019 Cathedral Terrace Café Newnan St. 11am Volunteer Activity

4/26-4/27/2019 Tree Hill Butterfly Festival Tree Hill Center 9am Volunteer Activity
4/26/2019 KIPP Academy STEM Fair 1440 N McDuff Ave 12pm Ambassador Speakers
4/26/2019 HabiJax Builds Hubbard St. 7:30am Volunteer Activity
4/26/2019 Feeding NE FL Food Bank Edgewood Ave. 8:30am Volunteer Activity
4/26/2019 Catty Shack Starratt Rd. 10am Volunteer Activity

4/27/2019
8th Annual JASMYN Strides 

for Pride
Riverside Area 8am Volunteer Activity

May-19
5/2 - 5/3/2019 Arts4All Fest Cummer Art & Gardens 8am Volunteer Activity 

5/4/2019 Eden Gardens 9179 Gardens St. 8am Volunteer Activity 
5/7 - 5/8/2019 USO Food Pantry 2560 Mayport Rd. 9am Volunteer Activity 

5/8/2019 Catholic Charities 2110 Blue Ave., 32209 11am Volunteer Activity 
5/8/2019 BEAM Food Bank 6th Ave. 1pm Volunteer Activity 

5/10/2019 Recovered Treasures Normandy Blvd. 12:30 PM Volunteer Activity 

5/11 - 5/17/2019
Stamp Out Hunger with Farm 

Share 
Multiple Locations Multiple Shifts Volunteer Activity 

5/14/2019 Jr Achievement School Takeover Greenland Pines Elem. 8:30am Ambassador Instructors

5/15/2019
Normandy Village Elem. 

Career Day
8257 Herlong Rd. 9am Ambassador Event

5/22/2019 Riverside Park Apts. 750 Oak St. 2pm Ambassador Speakers
5/24 - 5/26/2019 Jacksonville Jazz Fest. Downtown Multiple Shifts Volunteer Activity 

5/24/2019 Tiger Academy Career Day 6079 Bagley Rd. 8:30am Ambassador Event
Jun-19

6/7/2019 VA Resource Fair 1536 Jefferson St 10am Ambassador Event
6/14/2019 COJ Men's Health Fair Legends Center 5050 Soutel Dr. 10am Ambassador Event



Customer & Community Engagement Overview and Update
April FY19 

Each month, we update the Board on past, present and future Customer & Community Engagement monthly 
activities. The purpose is to keep you informed of these efforts, so that you are knowledgeable about JEA’s 
attempts to keep our customers informed, to assist them in the management of their utility services and to be a 
good corporate citizen.

Customer Communications
Protecting Our Environment
In March, we focused our messaging on environmental efforts that help protect the environment—including 
keeping our air fresh, waterways clean and greenspace sustainable. We all have a role to play in protecting our 
environment, so our messaging includes ways customers can do their part. 

Water Conservation 
In March we launched our spring educational campaign on JEA’s water services. With April being Water 
Conservation month, our focus is awareness of our conservation efforts and sharing customer tips they can use to 
help us preserve our “one water.” This theme carries across all customer communications in print (bill inserts) as 
well as online (jea.com and social media).

Call Before You Dig
April is National Safe Digging Month so we will be sharing messages with customers emphasizing the importance 
of calling before they begin any projects that include digging. This simple call on our customers’ part gives JEA and 
other utilities a chance to locate underground lines and pipes that may prevent personal injury and damages.

Community Engagement
JEA employees participated in numerous Ambassador events and Volunteer activities throughout the month of 
February. Ambassadors participated in 29 activities and volunteers served 836 hours in the community. 

JEA Ambassadors
March was a busy month for Ambassadors with the continuation of the spring Power Pals Program and multiple 
community events. Throughout the month, JEA Ambassadors taught the Power Pals program to first-graders at 
North Shore, St. Clair Evans, and Rufus Payne Elementary Schools. Ambassadors also participated in Touch a 
Truck, the Northside Church of God Resource Fair, Abess Park Elementary Career Fair and Mayport Elementary 
Career Day. 

Facility tours were conducted for students at Twin Lakes Academy, Tulsa Welding School and engineering 
students from UNF. Ambassadors spoke to groups at Moosehaven, Girls Inc. and Pace Center for Girls. 



FY19 Communications Plan - MH

Employee Volunteerism
In March, 139 JEA employees volunteered 767 hours in the community, connecting with customers and assisting 
with numerous nonprofit projects and activities. From volunteering at the Annual St. Johns River Cleanup to 
assisting the Disco Spring Fling for Seniors, JEA employees gave generously of their time and talents to benefit our 
community. 

JEA employees also volunteered time at USO No Dough Dinner, Farm Share, Catty Shack Ranch, Cathedral Terrace 
Café, HabiJax Builds, Callahan Food Distribution, Barkin’ Biscuits at Berry Good Farms, Fish-a-Thon, Catholic 
Charities Food Pantry, Feeding NE FL Food Bank, Eden Gardens, Sulzbacher Center and the Gate River Run.

JEA employees take great pride in the Ambassador and Volunteer programs, which demonstrate tangible ways for 
our customers and our community to see the “Heart of JEA.”



Ver 2.1 09/21/2013

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM
April 1, 2019

SUBJECT:
SOLE SOURCE & EMERGENCY PROCUREMENT/PROCUREMENT 
APPEALS BOARD REPORT

FROM: Aaron Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

TO: JEA Board of Directors

BACKGROUND:
Sections 1-113 and 1-114 of the JEA Purchasing Code require the Chief Procurement Officer to submit 
a report on all Sole Source and Emergency procurements and all Procurement Appeals Board decisions 
to the JEA Board on a quarterly basis.

DISCUSSION:
This report is submitted for the quarter ending March 31, 2019. Summary information for all awards is 
provided below. A detailed listing for the Formal Sole Source and Emergency Awards is attached.  
Detailed back-up information for all other awards is retained by the Chief Procurement Officer and is
available upon request. There were no Procurement Appeals Board (PAB) actions this quarter.

Quarter Ending March 31, 2019

Formal Awards Number %   Dollar Amount %
Total 73 $ 98,541,526
Sole Source Awards 0 0.00% $ 0 0.00%
Emergency Awards 0 0.00% $ 0 0.00%

Informal Awards Number %   Dollar Amount %
Total 1985 $ 21,218,518
Sole Source Awards 0 0.00% $ 0 0.00%
Emergency Awards 0 0.00% $ 0 0.00%

RECOMMENDATION:
This item is submitted for information.  No action by the Board is required. 

_________________________________
Aaron Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

AFZ/JPM/JGM



Award Date Amount
Requesting 

Dept.
Vendor Description Sourcing Basis

8/23/2018 $2,516,100.99
Steve Selders 
(Information 
Technology)

Cologix, Inc.

JEA Primary Data Center 
Relocation & Emergency 

Operational Location
Office Space

Sole Source: JEA has negotiated a five (5) year leasing agreement with 
Cologix to relocate JEA’s primary data center and to continue to utilize JEA's 
existing emergency operational office space lease for emergency events. JEA 
will relocate the primary data center from the current downtown 21 W 
Church St. location to the offsite Category 5 rated Cologix location at 4800 
Spring Park Rd., to reduce risk to JEA and increase accessibility during 
emergency events. This request is also to continue the existing emergency 
operational office space lease with Cologix for emergency events.

Total $2,516,100.99

Award 
Date

Amount
Requesting 

Dept.
Vendor Description Sourcing Basis

Total $0.00

12 months ending March 31, 2019

Emergency Awards (0 Items totaling $0.0)  

Formal Sole Source Awards by Department - Detailed Listing
12 months ending March 31, 2019

Sole Source Awards (1 Items totaling $2,516,100.99) 

Formal Emergency Awards by Department - Detailed Listing



Total Sole Source & Emergency 
Procurement Actions

FY18 Q3 FY18 Q4 FY19 Q1 FY19 Q2

Total Awards $95.49M $103.20M $256.33M $119.76M

Sole Source ($) $0.00M $2.52M $0.00M $0.00M

Sole Source (%) 0% 2.44% 0% 0%

Emergency ($) $0.11M $0.00M $0.06M $0.00M

Emergency (%) 0.12% 0% 0.02% 0.00%

Combined SS/E (%) 0.12% 2.44% 0.02% 0.00%



Corporate Metrics Dashboard 
As of March 31, 2019

Metrics for FY19 Goals 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 YTD 2019 Goal Variance
Customer Value
JDP Customer Satisfaction Index -  Residential 4th Quartile 3rd Quartile 3rd Quartile 1st Quartile 2nd Quartile 1st Quartile 2nd Quartile 1st Quartile 1st Quartile -
JDP Customer Satisfaction Index - Business 4th Quartile 4th Quartile 1st Quartile 1st Quartile 1st Quartile 1st Quartile 1st Decile 3rd Quartile Top Decile -
Customer Response Time (min.): W/WW System 70 69 67 69 67 68 76 66 65 -2%
Overall First Contact Resolution N/A N/A 78.5% 80.9% 79.4% 79.4% 79.0% 80.5% 80.0% 1%
Estimated Time of Restoration Accuracy - - 88% 85% 89% 82% 80% 90% 80% 12%
Grid Performance: Frequency (outages/year) 2.4 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.4 1.6 1.4 1.15 1.6 28%
Grid Performance: Outage Duration (minutes/year) 84 68 71 99 71 99.5 67 53 75 29%
Grid Performance: CEMI5  (% cust. > 5 outages/year) n/a n/a 2.34 2.10 1.40 1.07 0.40 0.14% 0.80 100%
Water Unplanned Outages (% cust.) 2% 1% 1% 2% 4% 1% 5% 0.55% 2% 73%
Water Distribution System Pressure (avg min < 30 psi) 34.9 20.0 2.1 2.8 2.1 3.7 1.8 0.36 2.0 82%
Financial Value
Net Write-Offs 0.19% 0.15% 0.15% 0.16% 0.14% 0.14% 0.13% 0.14% 0.18% 22%
Generation Fleet Reliability (forced outages rate) 0.7% 1.6% 3.0% 1.8% 2.0% 2.2% 2.1% 4.5% 2.0% -126%
Percent of Net O&M Budget 92% 90% 88% 93% 93% 93% 93% 98% 95% -3%
Cost Reduction Metric ($000) n/a n/a n/a n/a $25,156 $10,087 $10,495 $7,965 $9,100 TBD
Community Impact Value
Capital Invested ($000) $273,774 $234,718 $158,392 $204,708 $298,045 $307,918 $374,456 $194,754 $437,774 – $574,578 TBD
Safety (RIR) 1.48 1.84 2.38 1.65 1.82 2.10 1.48 1.25 1.40 11%
JEA Volunteers 237 Activities 465 Activities 670 Activities 753 Activities 985 Activities 913 Activities 1,050 Activities 3,423 Hours 4,800 Hours TBD
JSEB Spend ($000) $9,168 $10,121 $7,302 $9,318 $9,983 $13,365 $15,760 $8,948 $15,000 TBD
Environmental Value
Electric System Environmental Compliance (permit exceedances) 5 4 3 2 4 6 2 1 4 TBD
Consumptive Use Permit Compliance Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Nitrogen to the River (tons) 650 767 579 553 527 558 550 231 616 TBD
Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSO’s) (per 100 miles of pipe) 0.62 0.60 0.74 0.56 0.66 1.16 0.68 0.41 0.58 TBD

Metrics We Watch 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Forecast
Financial Value
Change in Net Position ($000) $182,642 $79,975 $156,269 $323,008 $210,016 $254,620 $126,488 $190,905
Debt to Capitalization 75% 73% 70% 69% 66% 63% 59% 54%
City Contribution ($000) $104,188 $106,687 $109,188 $111,688 $129,187 $115,823 $116,620 $132,648
Electric sales (000's MWh) 13,855 11,930 12,172 12,434 12,561 12,050 12,364 12,165
Water Sales (000's kgal) 35,345 33,088 32,468 34,558 36,358 37,245 36,187 35,351
Sewer Sales (000's kgal) 24,490 23,624 23,527 24,922 25,818 26,713 26,340 26,493
Reclaim Sales (000's kgal) 1,330 1,110 1,301 1,784 2,644 3,290 3,120 3,135
Community Impact Value
Utility Scale Solar Energy (000's MWh) 21 21 20 21 21 26 55 66
New Partnerships and Student Programs N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 25% Complete
Voluntary Attrition 46 36 44 32 33 35 35 20
Diverse Slate of Candidates (% of recruitments) N/A N/A N/A 97.6% 98.6% 100% 100% 100%
Economic Development Program Participants N/A 0 0 1 0 0 4 2
Environmental Value
Reclaimed Water Customer Growth* 35% 40% 43% 31% 27% 25% 22% 24%

Strategic Metrics - Long Term Influence 2012 Actual 2013 Actual 2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Forecast
Customer Value
Residential Electric Bill in FL (% of State Median) 101% 101% 99% 99.5% 101% 100% 98% 98.6%
Residential Water/Sewer Bill in FL (% of State Median) 110% 104% 102% 100% 96% 94% 92% 92.0%
Financial Value
Consolidated Return on Equity 13% 8% 10% 12% 13% 13% 9% 10.1%
Return on Net Assets 4% 2% 3% 4% 5% 5% 4% 5.0%
Unlevered Free Cash Flow: EBITDA less CAPEX ($000) $606,131 $532,872 $632,212 $591,925 $547,897 $573,259 $367,007 $356,888
Net Position (Book Value of Equity) ($000) $1,991,311 $2,071,286 $2,196,006 $2,166,909 $2,376,928 $2,631,545 $2,755,310 $2,946,214
City Contribution NPV - - - - - - $1,998,311 $1,998,311
Electric Credit Ratings Aa2/AA-/AA- Aa2/AA-/AA Aa2/AA-/AA Aa2/AA-/AA Aa2/AA-/AA Aa2/AA-/AA Aa2/A+/AA A2/A+/AA
W/WW Credit Ratings Aa2/AA/AA Aa2/AA/AA Aa2/AA/AA Aa2/AA/AA Aa2/AAA/AA Aa2/AAA/AA Aa2/AAA/AA A2/AAA/AA
Community Impact Value
Employee engagement (survey) - 71% - 74% 72% 79% 81% -
Environmental Value
CO2 Emissions (lbs/MWh), net basis, w/ Scherer 1,631 1,828 1,851 1,731 1,799 1,593 1,478 1,538
Aquifer Withdrawal Limit 104 100 103 107 112 114 112 111
Residential Water Use Efficiency (gal. per capita per day) 88 80 75 79 81 82 75 74
*May contain reclaimed customers temporarily supplied with potable water

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

Financial
Electric Enterprise:
• FY19 sales down 3.5% compared to Mar FY18 YTD
• Sales per customer are down 5.3% compared to Mar FY18 
YTD 
• Degree days are down 8.5% compared to Mar FY18  YTD
• Total customers are up 1.9% compared to Mar FY18 YTD
• Revenues decreased $63m vs. FY18 driven by SJRPP 
decreases, lower sales, and lower fuel stabilization 
withdrawals. 
• Expenses decreased $82m vs. FY18 with decreases in 
SJRPP and fuel and purchased power, partially offset by 
higher O&M (professional services, compensation, 
maintenance, industrial svcs)  and depreciation due to 
increase in depreciable base. Decrease in fuel and 
purchased power was driven by lower costs and net lower 
volume.

Water and Sewer:
• Water sales are down 2.3% compared to Mar FY18 YTD
• Sewer sales are up 0.6% compared to Mar FY18 YTD
• Reclaimed sales are up 0.5% compared to Mar FY18 YTD
• Sales per customer down 3.7% compared to Mar FY18 YTD
• Rain days are up 32.6% (14 days) compared to Mar FY18 
YTD, irrigation down 10.0% versus Mar FY18 YTD
• Total customers are up 2.7% compared to Mar FY18 YTD
• Revenues increased by $5m vs. FY18 due to increased 
customer accounts, rate/mix, higher enviro stabilization 
transfers, partially offset by lower sales.
• Expenses increased $10m vs. FY18 driven by an increase in 
O&M (compensation, industrial and professional services), 
higher environmental regulatory expenses, and depreciation 
due to increase in depreciable base.

DES
• Stable, minimal change from FY18

FEMA reimbursement:
• Matthew - $5.4m of $8.8m received 
• Irma - $0.07m of $19m received

Operations
Zero (0) OSHA recordables safety incidents for JEA in the 
month of March.  

Electric:
• The JEA fleet Forced Outage Rate is running higher than 
target due to NS Unit 2 having to be derated and held at 215 
mw due to a cyclone return joint rupture which is requiring 
the unit to be held steady at a constant temperature. NS 
Unit 1 experienced a slight derate during the month caused 
by a high pressure feed water heater leak that required the 
heater to be taken out of service. NS Unit 3 tripped off line 
while conducting a weekly valve test on the #1 control 
valve. 
• CEMI-5, ETR, Frequency, and Duration all performing 
better than goal.

Water/Sewer:
• Unplanned Water Main Outages:  390 customers 
experienced an outage in the month of March
• CUP:  Average daily flow of 105 MGD was 24% below          
CY19 limit of 138 MGD; reclaimed usage at 15 MGD 
• Nitrogen to River: FY19 Forecast is 483 tons this includes 
the deletion of 45 additional tons possible during the 
aeration basin project at Buckman, the project has been 
deferred.  JEA has a limit of 683 tons per year and provides 
the COJ with 37 tons.
• SSO’s Impacting Waters of the US:  21YTD, root cause 
analysis is performed on each SSO - exploring other options 



Ver 2.2 02/01/2014

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM
April 18, 2019

SUBJECT: JEA FY2018 ANNUAL DISCLOSURE REPORTS

FROM: Aaron F. Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

TO: JEA Board of Directors

BACKGROUND:
Each year, JEA files with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) through the 
Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) website Annual Disclosure Reports in compliance with 
JEA’s continuing disclosure undertakings for certain of its bonds and various credit agreements. EMMA 
is the “central electronic post office” recognized by the United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”) as the single national depository for continuing disclosure information that is 
required to be prepared and disseminated by issuers of municipal securities. Annual Disclosure Reports
have been prepared for the Electric Utility System and separately for the Water and Sewer System and 
District Energy System, (together, the “Systems”), and will be incorporated by reference in official 
statements and reoffering memoranda subsequently used by JEA for its respective Systems’ bond 
offerings and reofferings.

JEA is responsible for the content of the Annual Disclosure Reports and is subject to the provisions of 
the federal securities laws prohibiting false and misleading information in its disclosure documents. The 
antifraud provisions of the federal securities laws govern Board Member disclosure responsibilities. The 
requirements of the federal securities laws essentially require that disclosure documents of issuers such 
as JEA not contain an “untrue statement of a material fact” or omit to state a “material fact necessary in 
order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not 
misleading.” “Materiality” under the federal securities laws means whether there is a substantial 
likelihood that a reasonable investor would consider the facts at issue to be important to an investment 
decision.

Public officials (including Board Members) who have the ultimate responsibility to approve the issuance 
of debt securities and related disclosure documents have a duty under the federal securities laws and 
may not authorize disclosure he or she knows to be false or misleading or while recklessly disregarding 
facts that indicate there is a risk that the disclosure may be misleading. The SEC has stated that Board 
Members may reasonably rely on the work of governmental employees in the disclosure context. Nothing 
in the SEC’s position mandates that a Board Member needs to read each page of every disclosure 
document before approving it. Reasonable reliance can be established when the Board Member:

∑ is satisfied that the disclosure process is reasonably designed to produce accurate and reliable 
information;

∑ has a reasonable basis to have confidence in the integrity and competence of the staff and financing 
team; and

∑ does not know of anything that would cause such Board Member to question the accuracy of the 
disclosures or that would indicate that they are misleading or know of any potentially material 
issues that should be brought to the attention of staff and the financing team for further 
explanation.



Page 2
In accordance with existing practices, each Annual Disclosure Report presented for Board approval has 
been prepared by staff with the assistance of JEA’s outside bond counsel in a manner which we believe 
is reasonably designed to produce disclosure documents meeting the requirements of the federal 
securities laws.

DISCUSSION:
Each Annual Disclosure Report prepared for the Systems, as referred to above, contains updated 
disclosure information regarding each of JEA’s Systems and its respective most recently completed fiscal 
year and will be used (a) to provide that information to all participants in the municipal securities market 
regarding JEA’s outstanding debt and (b) as a basis for the disclosure information regarding JEA that is 
required to be given by JEA in connection with its issuances from time to time of refunding or additional 
debt. Among other things, the Annual Disclosure Reports contain JEA’s audited financial statements for 
its fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, as Appendix A thereto. Official Statements and reoffering 
memoranda prepared by JEA in connection with its respective Systems’ debt offerings and reofferings, 
subsequent to the date of the Annual Disclosure Reports for the Systems, incorporate by reference the 
relevant disclosure information contained in the respective Annual Disclosure Report and, if necessary, 
contain a “recent developments” section with respect to material changes in JEA’s business and 
condition that have occurred after the date of the respective Annual Disclosure Report. 

The Annual Disclosure Reports for the (i) Electric Utility System and (ii) Water and Sewer System and 
District Energy System for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, are expected to be filed with EMMA 
on or around April 23, 2019. Drafts of the Annual Disclosure Reports for the Systems were distributed 
electronically to Members on March 26, 2019. Changes from the March 26th draft are included with this 
item. Subsequent changes, if any, will be distributed at the Board’s April 23rd meeting.

All documents have been reviewed by the Office of General Counsel.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Board (i) approve and authorize the Annual Disclosure Reports for the 
Systems in substantially the forms distributed to Members on March 26, 2019, with additional changes as 
are approved by the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of JEA and (ii) authorize the filing 
and use of the Annual Disclosure Reports as described above.

_________________________________
Aaron F. Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

AFZ/RFW/JEO/RLH



















































































































































Ver 2.2 02/01/2014

INTER-OFFICE MEMORANDUM
April 10, 2019

SUBJECT:
JEA’S JACKSONVILLE SMALL AND EMERGING BUSINESS (JSEB) 
PROGRAM REPORT

FROM: Aaron F. Zahn, Managing Director/CEO

TO: JEA Board of Directors

BACKGROUND:
This report reviews JEA’s JSEB performance during the first 6 months of FY19.

At the board’s request, JEA staff will provide quarterly reports to monitor procurement results and identify 
key opportunties to further develop JSEB capacity and available spend.

DISCUSSION:
JEA’s JSEB performance during the first 6 months of FY19 has exceeded established goals.  Details are 
provided in the attachments and summary information is provided below.

∑ JSEB spend was $8,948,961 vs. the $7,500,000 pro-rated goal.  
o The FY19 goal was set at 23% of available spend vs. the 20% goal per city ordinance.
o JEA determines its available spend by reviewing competitively sourced JEA services that 

can be performed by the current pool of JSEB certified firms.
o JEA’s actual JSEB spend was 27.5% of its pro-rated available spend.  

∑ JEA also has a goal to add at least 5 new JSEB companies during FY19.
o JEA has identified potential areas for JSEB opportunties and is working with key 

stakeholders on targeted outreach efforts to further grow capacity.
o During the first 6 months of FY19, JEA has contracted with 5 new JSEB companies that 

did not provide services to JEA in FY18.

RECOMMENDATION:
No action is required by the Board. This item is presented for information only.

_______________________ __________
Aaron F. Zahn, Interim Managing Director/CEO

AFZ/MHD/JPM



JSEB PROGRAM
Q2 REPORT



FY19
JSEB SCORECARD Q2

2



FY19 Top
JSEB Vendors

FY19
JSEB TOP VENDORS

JSEB Vendors Spend

JB Materials, Inc. $2,401,311

Donna J. Hamilton, Inc. $970,137

J & D Maintenance and Services $848,179

Complete Services Well Drilling, Inc. $645,215

R. E. Holland & Associates, Inc. $491,322

DAK Resources, Inc. $429,282

Overstreet & Associates, Inc. $304,453

J. Collins Engineering Associates, LLC $273,581

American Construction Enterprises of NE FL, Inc. $211,311

I-Tech Resources, Inc. $210,241

Materials, 
Pipes & 
Values

Geo

Technical

Civil & MOT

Engineering

Sod
Restoration & 
Landscaping

Site Survey 
Permitting

Programming &
Conceptual

Design

3



FY19 Q2
JSEB Outreach

FY19
JSEB OUTREACH

Doing 
Business 
with JEA 

Workshop
3rd Thursday of the Month

January February March

01.15.19
Meeting with COJ Official
Councilman Terrance 
Freeman

01.24.19
Meeting with COJ Official
Councilman Reginald 
Gaffney

02.05.19
Jaxport’s Small Emerging
Business Appreciation Day
- Hosted by Jaxport

02.06.19
African American Small
Business Forum
- Hosted by Florida Blue &

121 Financial Credit Union

02.21.19
STPO Construction Services
Biltmore C Workshop
- Hosted by JEA

02.28.19
Minority-Owned Business
Leaders Group Meeting
- Hosted by Councilman

Reginald Gaffney

4



Remaining FY19 
JSEB Opportunities

FY19
JSEB OPPORTUNITIES

Septic Tank Phase Out
Outreach efforts to increase JSEB pool

ß February 21st hosted a STPO Construction 
Services for Biltmore C Workshop
ÿ Targeted Plumbers, Haulers, Sod/Pavement 

Restoration, Material Suppliers and General 

Contractors
ß Polled several vendors by sending the scope of 

work and minimum requirements for the 
plumbing work:
ÿ JSEB Plumbers

ÿ Local Plumbers

ÿ Plumber Associations

ß Construction Services Project Value $16M
ÿ JSEB Goal 20% or higher

ß Solicitation will advertise in April

Security Fencing
Total Project Value $2M

10% JSEB Goal

$200K JSEB Opportunity
Sub-Contracting Work:

Electrical or Landscaping

Solicitation will advertise in April

Westlake Substation T3 Addition
Total Project Value $1.6M

5% JSEB Goal

$80K JSEB Opportunity
Sub-Contracting Work: Site Restoration, Hauling, 

Excavation
Bids due May 7

Dinsmore Substation Interconnect
Total Project Value $379K

5% JSEB Goal

$19K JSEB Opportunity
Sub-Contracting Work: Site Restoration,           

Hauling, Excavation
Bids due May 14

Cecil Commerce Substation Transmission
Total Project Value $859K

5% JSEB Goal

$43K JSEB Opportunity
Sub-Contracting Work: Site Restoration, Hauling, Excavation

Bids due May 15

Small Diameter Pipe
Total Project Value $1.3M

JSEB Sheltered Opportunity

(Plan to award 2 Prime contracts)
Prime work: Engr Design for Small 

Diameter Pipe & Manhole Inspections
Bids due May 7

Construction, Engineering, Inspection Svcs
Total Project Value $10M

10% JSEB Goal

$1M JSEB Opportunity
(Plan to award 2 Prime contracts)

Sub-Contracting or Prime work: WWW Constructability Review & Inspection
Bids due May 14 5



FY19 Q3
JSEB Outreach

FY19
JSEB OUTREACH

April  
25, 2019

May       
10, 2019

May      
15, 2019

May   
16, 2019

June     
17, 2019

JEA/AABE Annual
Pastor’s Luncheon

2019 Reverse
Trade Show
Hosted by the 
National Contract 
Management 
Association

Spring Networking 
Event for Small 
Businesses
Hosted by the 
JATF
– Joint Agency Task 
Force

Boards & Commissioners

Chamber of Commerce

Local Diversity Groups

Local Trade 
Organizations

Small Business 
Organizations

JEA Leadership
Small Business
Week Celebration
Hosted by SBDC

JSEB
Target
Outreach

Backflow Testing
& Repair Workshop
- Targeting vendors 
that can perform 
backflow testing & 
repair

6


	WELCOME
	Adoption of the Agenda - Action
	Sunshine Law/Public records Statement - Lawsikia Hodges, Office of the General Counsel

	OPERATIONS (DISCUSSION / ACTION)
	Consent Agenda
	Appendix A: Board Meeting Minutes March 26, 2019
	Appendix B: Board Meeting Minutes April 2, 2019
	Appendix C: Water Reuse Week

	Monthly Reports and Updates
	Appendix A: Monthly Financial Statements
	Appendix B: Monthly Financial and Operations Detail
	Appendix C: Monthly FY19 Communications & Engagement Calendar and Plan Update
	Appendix D: Sole Source & Emergency Procurement/Procurement Appeals Board Report

	Monthly Financials and Operations Dashboard
	JEA FY2018 Annual Disclosure Reports
	JEA’s Procurement and Jacksonville Small and Emerging Business (JSEB) Program Report


